


Who we are

Cargills (Ceylon) PLC is a Sri Lankan corporate 
established in 1844 and built on a strong foundation of 
values and ethics. Guided by trusted leadership it 
spearheads the sustainable development of the food 
industry in Sri Lanka. The Company has a strong focus 
on innovation and development of people and 
processes. 

Its continuous investment in retail has made the Cargills 
retail arm Cargills Food City the largest retailer in the 
island in all categories. Pursuing innovation and food 
safety its three manufacturing brands Cargills Supremo 
(processed meats) Cargills Kist (processed fruits and 
vegetables) and Cargills Magic (ice cream and dairy 
products) lead sectoral growth. Its KFC franchise is the 
largest international restaurant chain in Sri Lanka. 
Through its marketing and distribution arm spread 
across the 23 districts Cargills distributes its 
manufactured brands as well as internationally 
renowned food and non-food brands. 

The Cargills agribusiness model has gained global 
recognition for linking the farmer to the market through 
a sustainable and inclusive value creation process. The 
Company is rated among the top ten business entities in 
Sri Lanka and was awarded the Platinum band for 
Corporate Sustainability in 2009.

Vision 
To be a global corporate role model in community – 

friendly national development.

Mission
Serve the rural community, our customers and all other 

stakeholders, through our core business – food with love 

– and other related businesses, based on the three main 

principles of 

 –  reducing the cost of living

 –  enhancing youth skills 

 –  bridging regional disparity 

by enhancing local and global markets. 
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Financial highlights

	 	 	 Group	 	 	 Company
	 	 2009	 2008	 change		 2009	 2008	 change	

	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000	 %	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000	 	%
Operations

Turnover 28,692,481 23,142,619 23.98 15,883,716 12,053,952 31.77

Profit from operation 1,232,186 947,199 30.09 645,789 409,138 57.84

Profits before taxation 702,586 607,152 15.72 352,502 206,988 70.30

Profits after taxation 539,900 491,016 9.96 269,251 122,406 119.97

Balance	sheet

Non current assets 5,412,469 4,712,094 14.86 5,029,929 3,222,327 56.10

Current assets 4,248,266 3,627,091 17.13 2,450,829 2,574,577 (4.81)

Current liabilities 6,371,303 5,548,754 14.82 5,276,627 4,203,587 25.53

Non current liabilities 1,156,728 894,923 29.25 797,999 369,636 115.89

Capital and reserves 2,132,704 1,541,690 38.34 1,406,132 1,223,681 14.91

Cash	Flow

Net	cash	generated	from

 - operating activities 874,193 1,085,432 (19.46) 851,362 1,085,779 (21.59)

 - investing activities (1,552,489) (1,471,252) 5.52 (1,906,439) (907,966) 109.97

 - financing activities 780,080 58,993 1222.33 809,022 (62,727) (1389.75)

* Per	share	data	(Rs.) 

 Earnings per share 2.23 2.00 11.52 1.20 0.55 118.18

 Dividend per share 0.50 0.39 29.03 0.50 0.39 28.21

 Net assets per share 9.52 6.88 38.34 6.28 5.46 16.02

 Market value per share 23.50 1,999.75 (98.82) 23.50 1,999.75 (98.82)

* Comparatives are restated, assuming number of shares as 224,000,000 (shares in issue after the sub - division effective from 
25 April 2008)
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Our businesses

Cargills	Food	City

The Cargills retail sector has grown to become the largest 
modern retailer in Sri Lanka with more than 50% of the 
modern trade market share. Its pioneer venture into modern 
trade was an innovation of the company’s trading legacy. 
Thereafter Cargills Food City continued to challenge the norm 
by taking to the masses what was traditionally an affluent 
focused business by offering ‘higher value for the lowest 
price’.

Not surprisingly the Cargills retail operation has grown to 
136 outlets spread across 19 districts, as ‘Cargills Food City’ 
supermarkets, ‘Cargills Express’ convenience stores and 
Cargills ‘Big City’ hypermarkets. In its short span of operation 
of 25 years, Cargills Food City has been consistently rated 
among the most valuable brands in Sri Lanka as per the Brand 
Finance Index rating. 

Cargills	Magic

Cargills Magic is the number one dairy ice cream in Sri Lanka 
and is the strong number two player in the overall ice cream 
market.  Cargills Quality Dairies which produces Cargills Magic 
ice cream, Milk and Milk Shakes is the first and only dairy 
product manufacturing company in Sri Lanka to be accredited 
with all three ISO certifications; ISO 9001: 2000 Quality 
Management System certification, ISO 22000: 2005 Food 
Safety Management System certification and ISO 14001: 2004 
Environment Management System certification. Cargills Magic 
was the first to introduce fresh fruits and local flavours to its 
portfolio of ice creams creating a new trend in the overall ice 
cream industry. Through its innovation driven focus Cargills 
Magic has expanded its market share exponentially and is 
now the fastest growing ice cream brand in Sri Lanka. 
	
Cargills	Supremo

The Cargills Supremo processed meats range is rapidly 
gaining market share through its product innovation, quality 
and unique taste. Cargills Quality Foods which produces 
the Supremo range is the only meat processing plant in 
Sri Lanka that has acquired the ISO 9001: 2000 Quality 
Management System certification, ISO 22000: 2005 Food 
Safety Management System certification and ISO 14001: 2004 
Environment Management System certification. The company 
has also secured international expertise to develop new and 
innovative products which offer a novel variety of taste whilst 
catering to the nutritional needs of the consumer. 

Cargills	Kist

Cargills Kist is one of the most trusted brand names in Sri 
Lanka known by generations for its true Sri Lankan flavours 
and high standards of quality. Cargills Kist which is traditionally 
renowned for its delectable selection of jams, sauces and 
cordials has expanded its 100% fruit based product range 
introducing fruit based nectars to the market. Today the 
nutritious and delicious Kist nectar range has revolutionized 
the industry and is popular for its genuine fruity taste.

KFC

Cargills holds the franchise for the internationally acclaimed 
KFC chain which is the largest and most popular international 
restaurant chain in the country. The success of KFC was in the 
fusion of an international brand with well - loved Sri Lankan 
recipes. The locally inspired additions to the KFC menu have 
now been included into the regional product portfolio.

Marketing and Distribution 

The company’s marketing and distribution arm Millers, is one 
of the largest distribution and logistic operations in the country 
geared with a network spread across the 25 districts of Sri 
Lanka. Millers is the island wide distributor for international 
brands such as Kodak, Kraft, Cadbury, Bonlac, Nabisco, Tang, 
Toblerone etc and is also the mass market distributor for 
Cargills Supremo, Cargills Magic and Cargills Kist.
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Chairman’s  statement

Dear Shareholder,

I am pleased to present the annual report and audited financial 
statements of Cargills (Ceylon) PLC for the year ended 31 March 
2009.

Sri Lanka has entered an era of promise. The nation and its 
people are exuberant in the confidence of a stronger and 
brighter future. Cargills takes great pride in being part of 
this generation that would surely lead our nation to its true 
potential of development and prosperity. 
 
Today we face a world that is changing faster than ever. The 
demands of expanding trade, growing populations, fragile 
economies and volatile prices are presenting daunting 
challenges to the commercial world. In these dynamic times 
how can Cargills help our stakeholders meet the challenges of 
today and realise the opportunities of tomorrow? 

Protecting Investments, Building Trust, Leading Innovation 

Our continued investments in food and agribusiness and our 
leadership in innovation have created solutions that generate 
value for Sri Lanka winning the trust of Sri Lankans. Each day 
we are finding new ways to connect our resources and insights 
in an effort to address complex problems and possibilities. In 
the time ahead strategic investment and innovation would be 
essential to create sustainable value. Building on the trust we 
have consolidated over the years, the company would join our 
customers and the community in addressing the challenging 
questions and in shaping the solutions. In the year ahead 
Cargills would be called upon to do what it does best, even 
better. Your Company has set the foundation for this future and 
we are now poised for take-off.  

Sustained	growth	in	challenging	environment	

In the financial year ended Cargills continued to sustain its 
overall profitability growth despite the challenging business 
environment partially attributable to the global downturn. The 
admirable growth levels recorded demonstrates the company’s 
solid foundation and strong fundamentals.

The real impact of the faltering global economy filtered into the 
domestic environment in the latter part of the financial year. The 
Company being mindful of the adverse consequences launched 
a strategic programme to re-direct itself in a protective manner 
focusing on internal processes and cost structures. Thereby the 
Company has mitigated the impact the downturn would have 
on the business.

Generating sustainable value

Contributing to state revenue 

Cargills has led the shift from unorganized trade to organized 
trade contributing substantially to economic growth in 
terms of taxes and employment. Year on year we have been 
consistently investing significant amounts in the expansion of 
our businesses. 

Above average employee remuneration 

Cargills grew its employee base maintaining minimum wages 

over and above standard remuneration both in the sector 
and outside. Our contribution in this area is particularly felt 
in regional Sri Lanka where training opportunities and gainful 
employment for youth continues to be in short supply. 

Price leadership amidst double digit inflation

Despite the challenging business environment the Company 
continued to innovate on its business processes pursuing its 
‘lowest price’ strategy. Cargills has therefore succeeded in 
providing a highly competitive benchmark for prices in the 
retail market which has proven to be extremely beneficial for 
consumers amidst double digit inflation. 

25	years	of	shared	value

During the year, Cargills Food City Sri Lanka’s leading modern 
retailer celebrated its 25th anniversary by launching a landmark 
stakeholder - rewards campaign. The celebration was aimed at 
appreciating the role played by all, from customer to farmer, in 
the development of Cargills Food City as a formidable contributor 
to industry growth. The 25th anniversary celebration coincided 
with 25 grand opening of Cargills Food City outlets. 

Investing in the East

The expansion of the company’s retail sector into 136 outlets 
in the year created further market opportunities for the rural 
farmers and small scale entrepreneurs. The Company is also 
participating in the revival of the Eastern economy with the 
opening of outlets in Batticaloa, Ampara and Trincomalee with 
an investment of Rs. 145 Mn. The business opportunities in the 
region appear to be extremely promising. 
 
Strong food brands built on innovation and founded on 
quality

In the food manufacturing sector Cargills Magic, Cargills Kist 
and Cargills Supremo have now established themselves as 
strong household brands. Cargills Magic has taken a clear lead 
as the top dairy ice cream in Sri Lanka continuing to deliver the 
most innovative range of products delivering the highest quality 
both in impulse and take - home. Cargills Kist has earned its 
distinction for consumer trust. Its sauces and ketchup collection 
has had an exceptional response from consumers boosting the 
brands market share. Our youngest brand Cargills Surpremo 
meanwhile has seen appreciable gains in the processed meats 
category. The delivery of an innovative and exciting range of 
products would see Supremo making further headway in its 
category. The Company’s manufacturing sector even as it 
cements category leadership is well positioned to develop 
stronger international appeal for its brands in terms of product 
quality and variety. 

The KFC chain of restaurants has remained vibrant in the year 
ended with the external environment having little impact on 
the dining habits of the cosmopolitan society. In the year ahead 
the company sees greater promise for the restaurant sector 
and would be looking to build the business with selective 
expansion. 

Potential to be among leading FMCG companies in Sri Lanka 

The year under review saw a full year of operation of Millers 
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Chairman’s  statement contd...

Distributors Ltd under the Cargills fold. The island - wide reach 
of Millers coupled with its longstanding strength in mass -
market distribution increased the market penetration of 
Cargills enhancing their market share. The portfolio of local 
and international brands distributed by Millers also showed 
overall growth. The Company would further expand its product 
range in the year ahead harnessing its potential to be one of 
the leading Fast Moving Consumer Goods  (FMCG) Companies 
in Sri Lanka.

Strengthening regional base 

Cargills has now established its presence in 23 districts of 
the country and would be looking to further strengthen its 
regional base. The company would be positioning itself in 
townships island wide, with well managed outlets and efficient 
distributorship attracting a loyal and growing customer base 
that has placed trust in Sri Lanka’s strongest food and beverage 
brands.

Enjoying sustainable success

Cargills Food City grabs finalist spot at World Retail Awards 

The highlight of the year was Cargills Food City being short-
listed among the likes of Tesco, Migros, Woolworths, Marks & 
Spencer and Morrisons as a finalist for the Most Responsible 
Retailer of the year award at the World Retail Awards 2009.  
This underpins the enduring values we have maintained as a 
corporate citizen of Sri Lanka and strengthens our resolve to 
drive our business in a manner that creates sustainable value 
for all stakeholders.  Other forms of special recognition received 
included the Asia Retail Congress awarding Cargills Food City 
the Asia Retail Leadership Award.

AA+ rating for brand value 

These values were also further endorsed in the fact that Cargills 
Food City was rated the fourth Most Valuable Brand in Sri Lanka 
by the Brand Finance Index ratings of 2009 and was among the 
only two companies to receive an AA+ rating for Brand Value. 

Summary	of	performance

Your Company recorded an excellent performance in the year-
ended with turnover increasing by 32% from Rs. 12 Bn to Rs. 
16 Bn. The profit recorded an exceptional growth of 120% from 
Rs. 122 Mn to Rs. 269 Mn, substantial part of these profits 
arising from investment income. Consolidated profit before tax 
of Rs. 703 Mn reflects a 16% growth over the previous year’s 
profit of Rs. 607 Mn. The group after - tax profit attributable 
to shareholders was Rs. 499 Mn, a growth of 12% over the 
previous year’s profit of Rs. 447 Mn. 

During the year the Company received dividend income 
amounting to Rs. 168 Mn.

The group invested Rs. 1.2 Bn in property plant and equipment 
during the year. The group’s confidence in its business has 
resulted in the Company investing Rs. 5 Bn in property, plant, 
equipment and acquisitions over the past 6 years. Despite the 
resultant high depreciation and interest costs the Company 
has maintained a consistent performance over this period and 
we are confident that these investments would bring above - 

average returns to the Company and shareholders in the years 
to come. 

Appropriation 

A dividend of 20 Cents per share was paid on 30 April 2009 as 
interim dividend and a dividend of 30 Cents will be proposed 
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Company is 
maintaining a consistent dividend policy being aware of its 
capital commitment towards investment aimed at long-term 
growth. The performance of the share bears ample testimony 
to shareholder appreciation of the increasing value of the 
Company and has created substantial capital wealth. We are 
confident that this will only grow in the future.

Poised to ride the buoyancy 

The past year has been momentous. At times, extraordinary, 
Cargills is confident of the prospects for growth and 
development ahead and is poised to ride the buoyancy. In 
today’s complex business environment, we have built the 
trust of our stakeholders helping them to adapt to changing 
conditions by driving innovative solutions. In this way we have 
positioned Cargills and our stakeholders to grow and succeed.  
The Company has launched an internal programme to develop 
future leadership in every tier. Through investment and 
innovation that advances agriculture and food, benefits people 
and nature, we will continue to achieve sustainable growth. 
In the period ahead the Company is equipped to turn every 
challenge into an opportunity for Sri Lanka and its people. 

Acknowledgement	

I take this opportunity to recognize the contribution of our valued 
customers, our business partners in the farming communities 
and small and medium scale enterprises (SME) sector as well as 
our principals, suppliers and the financial institutions. I warmly 
acknowledge the commitment of the Cargills Team as well as 
the continued cooperation of my colleagues on the Board. I 
would also like to thank all shareholders for the confidence and 
trust they continue to place in Cargills (Ceylon) PLC.  

Signed.
L.R. Page 
Chairman

3 June 2009
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Profile of directors

Mr. L R Page
**Chairman
Mr. Louis R Page is a Fellow Member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and a Fellow Member of 
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (UK). He 
has been involved in the operations of the Ceylon Theatres 
group in a non - executive capacity and in setting and review 
of policy framework, and in key investment decision-making. 
He has also held a number of senior management and board 
positions in overseas companies. 

Mr.	V	R	Page	
Deputy Chairman / Managing Director
Mr. Ranjit Page possesses over 26 years of management 
experience with expertise in food retailing, food service, 
and manufacturing, having introduced the concept of 
supermarketing to the Sri Lankan masses. He also serves on 
the boards of several other companies. He is also a Founder-
Director of the Mawubima Lanka Foundation, set up to promote 
local industry and produce.

Mr.	S	V	Kodikara	
Executive Director
Mr. Sidath Kodikara is the Executive Director responsible for the 
Retail and Restaurant operations. He is a Member of the Hotel 
and Catering International Management Association of United 
Kingdom. He counts over 24 years of managerial experience in 
the hospitality and retail sector.

Mr.	P	S	Mathavan	
Executive Director
Mr. Prabhu Mathavan is the Executive Director responsible 
for Finance. He is an Associate Member of the Chartered 
Institute of Management Accountants (UK) and the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. He also holds a Bachelors 
Degree in Commerce. He possesses over 16 years of experience 
in the fields of Finance, Auditing, Accounting and Taxation.

Mr. Jayantha Dhanapala
*Director (from 1 June 2008)
Mr. Jayantha Dhanapala is a former United Nations Under-
Secretary-General for Disarmament Affairs (1998-2003) and a 
former Ambassador of Sri Lanka to the USA (1995-1997) and 
to the UN Office in Geneva (1984-1987). He was Director of 
the UN Institute for Disarmament Research (UNIDIR) from 
1987-1992. As a Sri Lankan diplomat Mr. Dhanapala served 
in London, Beijing, Washington D.C., New Delhi and Geneva 
and represented Sri Lanka at many international conferences 
chairing several of them.  He is currently the Chairman of the UN 
University Council and President of the Pugwash Conferences 
on Science and World Affairs ; a member of the Governing Board 
of the Stockholm International Peace Research Institute (SIPRI) 
and several other advisory boards of international bodies. 

Mr. A T P Edirisinghe
*Director
Mr. Priya Edirisinghe is a Fellow Member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and a Fellow Member of 
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (UK) and 
holds a Diploma in Commercial Arbitration. He is the Senior 
Partner of HLB Edirsinghe & Co., Chartered Accountants. He 
counts over 40 years of experience in both public practice and 

in the private sector. He serves on the Boards of a number of 
other listed and non-listed companies.

Mr. S E C Gardiner
**Director
Mr. Sanjeev Gardiner is the Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer of the Gardiner Group, comprising the Galle Face Hotel 
Co. Limited, the Ceylon Hotels Corporation PLC, Kandy Hotels 
Company (1938) Limited (which owns the Queen’s and Suisse 
Hotels in Kandy), and Lihiniya Surf Hotel, Bentota. He is also 
a Director of Ceylon Bulbs and Electricals Limited, as well as 
several public and private companies. He has been a Council 
Member of HelpAge International, Sri Lanka Branch for several 
years.

Mr.	Sunil	Mendis
*Director
Desamanya Sunil Mendis was formerly the Chairman of Hayleys 
Group, and the immediate former Governor of the Central Bank 
of Sri Lanka. He possesses around 41 years of wide and varied 
commercial experience most of which has been in very senior 
positions.

Mr.	Anthony	A	Page
**Director
Mr. Anthony Page is the Chairman of Ceylon Theatres group of 
companies and counts 38 years of management experience in 
a diverse array of businesses. He serves on the Boards of many 
group as well as other companies. He is a Fellow Member of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. He was on the 
Board of the Colombo Stock Exchange and also was a former 
Council Member of the Employers Federation of Ceylon.

Mr.	J	C	Page
**Director
Mr. Joseph Page is the Deputy Chairman/Managing Director of 
C T Land Development Limited. He is also Executive Director of 
CT Properties Limited. Prior to joining CT Land Development 
Limited he was Executive Director of Millers PLC. He has over 
26 years of management experience in the private sector.

Mr. E A D Perera
*Director
Mr. Errol Perera has held Senior Management positions in 
England and Malaysia. On his return to Sri Lanka he focused on 
promoting Joint Venture Projects with Foreign investment and 
Technology transfer. He was successful in obtaining Board of 
Investment approval with Pioneer Status for projects in the field 
of Telecommunications and Financial Services. He is at present 
a Director of several other listed and non-listed companies in 
Sri Lanka and overseas. 

Mrs. S R Thambiayah
**Director
Mrs. Subodhini Thambiayah, a Barrister-at-Law, is the 
Chairperson and Managing Director of The Cargo Boat Despatch 
Co. Limited and possesses around 36 years of commercial 
experience. 

* Independent Non Executive
** Non Independent Non Executive
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Corporate governance

The extent to which the principles of good corporate governance 
are implemented within the Group is set out below.

The Board of Directors

During the year the Board comprised the Chairman (non 
executive), the Deputy Chairman and Managing Director, two 
Executive Directors and eight other Non Executive Directors. 
Their names and designations are given on the inner back cover 
and brief profiles are shown on page 6.

The Non Executive Directors have submitted to the Board their 
declarations of independence / non independence based on 
which, and other information available, the Directors have 
determined that four of the nine Non Executive Directors are 
Independent Directors, namely,

Mr. Jayantha Dhanapala,

Mr. E A D Perera and the following –

Mr. A T P Edirisinghe
- who has served on the Company’s Board for a period in excess 

of nine years and

- is also a Director of Ceylon Theatres Limited (Company’s 
Holding Company) which has a significant shareholding in the 
Company and

Mr. Sunil Mendis
- who is also a Director of Ceylon Theatres Limited.

whom, in spite of their service on the Company’s Board for 
over nine years and / or being Directors in another Company 
which has a significant shareholding in the Company, the Board 
has nevertheless determined as in the previous year to be 
independent considering their credentials and integrity.

Mr. Jayantha Dhanapala, independent non executive Director, 
was appointed to the Board on 1 June 2008.

It is confirmed that the Board consists of the correct number 
of Non - Executive Directors and Independent Non - Executive 
Directors as laid out in the Listing Rules on “Corporate 
Governance” of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE).

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic direction, policy 
formulation and control procedures. All capital expenditure 
require prior approval of the Board. The Deputy Chairman and 
Managing Director, functions as the Chief Executive Officer.

The Non Executive Directors, while not being involved in the day 
to day running of the Company, participate in the close review 
and monitoring of the operations of the Company. They are 
all business leaders in their own right, and comprise a strong 
and independent element of the Board and add a depth of 
knowledge and insight that is vital for the continued success of 
the Company. All plans and strategies proposed are examined 
and fully discussed at meetings of Directors. The Board met six 
times during the financial year. 

Vacancies in the Board of Directors are filled by a decision of the 
whole Board. All members appointed to the Board have been 
individuals of a high standing in society, experts in their chosen 
fields and individuals of the highest standard of integrity.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, the composition of which 
is in conformity with the Rules of the CSE, comprises three 
Non - Executive Directors all of whom are independent. One 
among them has been appointed by the Board of Directors to 

function as the Chairman of the Committee. The names and 
designations of the members of the Committee appear on the 
inner back cover.

The Committee recommends to the Board the remuneration 
payable to the Executive Directors and the Chief Executive  
Officer.

In recommending an appropriate remuneration package the 
primary objective of the Committee is to attract and retain the 
services of highly qualified and experienced personnel. The 
Committee meets as and when necessary.

The aggregate remuneration paid to Executive and Non 
Executive Directors during the year is disclosed in note 7 of 
the financial statements appearing on page 29 of the Annual 
Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, the composition of which is in conformity 
with the rules of the CSE, comprises four Non Executive Directors 
of whom three are independent. Their names and designations 
appear on the inner back cover. A senior professionally qualified 
Accountant who is an Independent Non-Executive Director, has 
been appointed by the Board of Directors to functions as the 
Chairman of the Committee.

The Audit Committee is empowered to review the activities and 
financial affairs of the Company and to monitor the internal 
control system and the effectiveness of the internal audit 
function of the Company.

The Audit Committee met four times during the year. As 
determined by the Audit Committee, the Chief Internal Auditor 
attends the meetings of the Audit Committee and the Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company is 
invited to participate at the meetings of the Audit Committee 
as and when key issues are taken up for consideration. 

Reports from the external auditors on their audit findings are 
referred to the Audit Committee providing an opportunity for 
impartial review of these reports. At the Audit Committee 
meetings held during the year, the Committee deliberated on 
the key internal financial affairs of the Company.

Code of ethics and best practices

The principles involved in the code of ethics and best practices 
for the Directors, although not formally published, have been 
internally adopted for several years. The administrative and 
personnel procedure manual of the Company sets out the 
ethical standards and practices to be followed by the staff. 

Corporate Management Committee

The Corporate Management Committee is headed by the 
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director who functions as 
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. This committee 
includes two Executive Directors of Cargills (Ceylon) PLC, four 
Executive Directors of subsidiaries and four Group Managers. 
The Corporate Management Committee meets on a monthly 
basis to review the performance of the various companies and 
to ensure that the overall corporate objectives are achieved.

The Chief Internal Auditor heads the Internal Audit Division, 
which functions independent of all operating units. This 
ensures an independent verification of the operation of the 
control systems within the Group.
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Audit & Remuneration Committee Reports

Audit Committee Report
The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors 
of the company and reports directly to the Board. The Audit 
Committee consists of four members of whom three are 
independent non-executive Directors. The Chairman of the 
Audit Committee is also a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka. The composition of the members 
of the Audit Committee satisfy the criteria as specified in the 
Standards on Corporate Governance for listed companies. 

The Members of the Audit Committee and their attendance at 
meetings are:

Name  Independence  Attendance
 (all are non-executive 
 Directors) 
A.T.P.Edirisinghe FCMA, 
    FCA - Chairman Independent 4 of 4
Mr. Sunil Mendis Independent 4 of 4
Mr. E A D Perera Independent 3 of 4
Mrs. S R Thambiayah Non Independent 4 of 4

The Chief Internal Auditor attends all meetings and the Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO) and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
attends audit committee meetings as and when requested to 
do so by the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary acts as 
the Secretary to the Committee.

The oversight function of (a) the preparation, presentation and 
adequacy of disclosures in the quarterly and annual financial 
statements of the company, in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards and (b) the Company’s compliance with 
financial reporting requirements, information requirements 
of the Companies Act and other relevant financial reporting 
related regulations and requirements, was duly performed and 
the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the quarterly and 
year-end financial statements and recommended their adoption 
to the Board. In all instances, the Audit Committee obtained 
a declaration from the CFO stating that that the respective 
financial statements are in conformity with the applicable 
accounting standards, company law and other statues including 
corporate governance rules and that the presentation of such 
financial statements are consistent with those of the previous 
quarter or year as the case may be, and further states any 
departures from financial reporting, statutory requirements 
and Group policies, (if any).  

The oversight function over the processes to ensure that 
the Company’s internal controls and risk management, are 
adequate, to meet the requirements of the Sri Lanka Auditing 
Standards was duly performed and the Audit Committee 
reviewed and discussed (a) the business risk management 
processes and procedures adopted by the company, to manage 
and  mitigate the effects of such risks and measures taken to 
minimize the impact of such risks, (b) the internal audit plan 

and monitoring the performance of the internal auditor and 
adherence to the internal audit plan and (c) the internal audit 
reports and monitoring follow up action by the management. 

The Audit Committee assessed the independence and 
performance of the Company’s external auditors and made 
recommendations to the Board pertaining to appointment/
re-appointment. The Audit Committee also reviewed the 
audit fees for the Company and approved the remuneration 
and terms of engagement of the external auditors and made 
recommendations to the Board. When doing so, the Audit 
Committee reviewed the type and quantum of non-audit 
services (if any) provided by the external auditors to the 
Company to ensure that their independence as Auditors has 
not been impaired. The Audit Committee will in due course 
monitor compliance by the external auditors with the statutory 
requirements and the provisions in the guidelines laid down by 
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka. 

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board 
that Messrs KPMG Ford, Rhodes, Thornton and Company, 
Chartered Accountants, be re-appointed as external auditors of 
the Company for the financial year ending 31st March 2010, 
subject to approval by the shareholders at the Annual General 
Meeting. 

A.T.P.Edirisinghe FCMA, FCA
Chairman – Audit Committee

3 June 2009 

Remuneration Committee Report
The Remuneration Committee of Cargills (Ceylon) PLC consists 
of three Non – Executive Directors – Messrs. Sunil Mendis 
(Chairman), A.T.P. Edirisinghe and Mr. Jayantha Dhanapala. The 
Deputy Chairman / Managing Director may also be invited to 
join in the deliberations as required.

The Committee studies and recommends the remuneration 
and perquisites applicable to the Executive Directors of the 
Company and makes appropriate recommendations to the 
Board of Directors of the Company for approval.

The Committee also carries out periodic reviews to ensure that 
the remunerations are in line with market conditions.

Sunil Mendis
Chairman – Remuneration Committee

3 June 2009 
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Risk management

Internal Controls

The Company maintains a system of internal controls designed 
to provide a high degree of assurance regarding the effectiveness 
and efficiency of operations, the adequacy of safeguards for 
assets, the reliability of financial controls, and compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations.

Recognizing the important role of internal scrutiny, the 
Company has an internal audit function which is empowered to 
examine the adequacy and the compliance with policies, plans 
and statutory requirements. It is also responsible for assessing 
and improving the effectiveness of risk management, control 
and governance process. Continuous audit and verification of 
the systems enables the various business units to eliminate 
shortcomings. It also evaluates the Company’s strategic risk 
management system and suggests risk mitigation measures for 
all key operations. In addition, the top management and the 
Audit Committee of the Board regularly review the findings and 
recommendations.

Risk	Management

The Board has overall responsibility for risk management and 
internal control within the context of achieving the Group’s 
objectives. 

The Group reviews weaknesses at the monthly reviews, which 
contains the key risks faced by the Group including their 
impact and likelihood as well as the controls and procedures 
implemented to mitigate these risks. The content of the 
reviews are determined through regular discussions with senior 
management and reviewed by the Executive Committee. A 
balanced approach allows the degree of controllability to 
be taken into account when considering the effectiveness of 
mitigation recognising that some necessary activities carry 
inherent risk which may be outside the Group’s control. The risk 
management process ensures that opportunities to improve 
the business are built into our future plans.

Competitive environment

The retail industry is highly competitive. The Group competes 
with  retailers of varying formats, sizes and levels of service. 

Failure to compete with competitors on areas including price, 
product range, quality and service could have an adverse effect 
on the Group’s financial results. 

We aim to have a broad appeal in price, range and store format 
in a way that allows us to compete in different markets. We 
track performance against a range of measures that customers 

tell us as critical to their shopping trip experience and we 
constantly monitor customer perceptions of ourselves and our 
competitors to ensure we can respond quickly as needed.

People capabilities 

Our greatest asset is our employees. It is critical to our success 
to attract, retain, develop and motivate the best people with 
the right capabilities at all levels of operations. We review our 
people policies regularly and are committed to investing in 
training and development and incentives for our people. We 
also carry out succession planning to ensure that the needs of 
the business going forward are considered and provided for. 
There are clear processes for understanding and responding 
to employees’ needs through HR initiatives, staff surveys, and 
regular communication of business developments.

Health	and	safety	risks	

While the safety of our staff and customers is of the utmost 
importance to us, if we are unable to provide safe environments 
for our staff and customers this could lead to injuries or loss 
of life. We operate stringent health and safety processes in 
line with best practice in our outlets, manufacturing facilities, 
stores, distribution centers and offices, which are monitored 
and audited regularly.

Legal and regulatory environment

Legal, internal audit and monitoring functions ensures 
compliance of all required legal and other regulatory 
compliances.
 
IT systems and infrastructure 

The business is dependent on efficient information technology 
(IT) systems. We recognise the essential role that IT plays 
across our operations in allowing us to trade efficiently through 
implementing IT solutions. We have extensive controls in place 
to maintain the integrity and efficiency of our IT infrastructure 
and to ensure consistency of delivery.

Interest rate risk

It is the Company’s objective to limit its exposure to increases 
in interest rates while retaining the opportunity to benefit from 
interest rate reductions. Therefore the Group manages interest 
rate fluctuations with proper mix of fixed and variable rate 
debts through the centralized fund management function. 
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Sustainability reporting

Cargills believes that its responsibilities as a corporate citizen 
extend not only to its own operations but to the wider 
communities it impacts. We work with all our partners to foster 
sustainable economic development, provide meaningful impact 
on communities and promote responsible business practices 
in our supply chains. Consistently investing in the growth of 
food and agribusiness, Cargills has partnered its communities 
in creating innovative business solutions to socio-economic 
problems that matter. 

Accessible, safe, nutritious food 

Our focus on food and agriculture puts us in a unique position 
to help address growing challenges in food supply that range 
from food safety and security to poverty and malnutrition. 

By sourcing food effectively and moving it efficiently, Cargills 
can help meet the demands of a growing population. By 
developing innovative feeds and food ingredients, we can 
enhance the nutritive value of food. And by maintaining a 
successful business, we can continue to buy from thousands of 
farmers and have a positive impact on local economies.

Impacting the cost of living

Cargills uses it widespread retail and mass market distribution 
operation to provide essential commodities to consumers 
at a consistently affordable price. A World Bank study titled 
‘Production Resources in Lagging regions 2007’ has established 
that through the Cargills supply chain consumers are ensured 
commodities at below average price even while farmers enjoy 
the highest price for their produce. Cargills also goes a step 
further to empower families through its pricing structures 
which ensure that every month a basket of essential nutrients 
reach consumers at below market price.  Currently Cargills 
impacts the cost of living of more than 600,000 households on 
a monthly basis. 

Leading in food safety and quality

Each product that is manufactured or sold at Cargills must 
meet the benchmark of quality set by our company. We ensure 
that the food we purchase, process or manufacture meet the 
highest quality, environmental and social standards. 

Cargills Quality Dairies which manufactures the ‘Cargills 
Magic’ range of dairy ice cream and dairy products as well 
as Cargills Quality Foods which manufactures the ‘Cargills 
Supremo’ processed meats are accredited with all three ISO 
Certifications.

The Cargills Kist quality assurance process is a stringent one 
that starts from the farm. Fruits are purchased during the 
season, processed, aseptically packed and stored for use all 
year around. The Total Quality Management process used by 
our Kist facility ensures consistently high product and process 
quality.

Responsible sourcing 

Mindful of regional disparities, Cargills buys from small-holder 
producers, provides agricultural training and technology, 
supports the development of farmer cooperatives, and helps 
deliver better pricing systems and market access for the 
products farmers produce.

Unique agribusiness model 

Cargills has built a strong and enduring relationship with 
Sri Lanka’s rural farming communities and small scale 
entrepreneurs. Thousands of farmers and small industries 
have been directly linked to market through the Cargills 
business model which is acknowledged by organizations such 
as the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation and UNIDO as one 
of the most successful and innovative methods of bringing 
about sustainable development. The model complete with 
standard pricing, assured market, extensive extension services 
and forward contracts has enhanced the productivity and 
competitiveness of small holder farmers. Cargills has further 
enhanced the model with a mechanism to reinvest in the 
development of the same farming communities from which it 
sources its produce. 

Cargill is also working alongside non-governmental 
organizations, industry partners, government representatives, 
trade associations, producer groups and other stakeholders to 
identify responsible and sustainable agricultural practices and 
encourage their adoption across Sri Lanka. 

Engaging our communities 

Youth	empowerment	

Cargills has continuously focused its energies on developing 
a vibrant new force of professionals in the food business. The 
Albert A. Page Institute of Food Business established in 2007 as 
a non - profit venture is engaged in the people development 
process with a focus on rural youth. The institute has provided 
internationally accredited training including certificate and 
diploma to more than 3,000 youth so far. 

It has also partnered the Gemi Diriya Foundation funded by 
the World Bank in empowering rural youth towards private 
sector employment. The USAID developed ASAP programme 
(Accelerated Skills Acquisition Programme) is being carried 
out by the Institute in areas identified by Gemi Diriya. Many of 
these trained youth have been absorbed into Cargills and are 
identified as future leaders in the company.

The institute has also linked up with the IGA to provide on-
line training programmes for youth aimed at future e-learning 
facilities for regional Sri Lanka. 

Leadership, knowledge, innovation

New	leadership		

Cargills is of the view that the world is in need of a new breed 
of entrepreneurs who posses the highest level of integrity and 
business leaders who would remain committed to their values 
and ethics in the most challenging times. Cargills believes that 
through its in-built value system translated into training, it can 
develop this new generation of leaders who would transcend 
conventional boundaries towards creating value for the 
community. 

Knowledge integration

Cargills is equipped with experts who have specialized in key 
areas and can drive social development and change. Supported 
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by technology and new methods of knowledge integration they 
are sought after for their expertise in diverse fields ranging from 
supply chain management, sustainability, dairy development, 
food safety and quality as well as product development and 
manufacturing. 

Cargills has also sealed a Memorandum of Understanding with 
the Department of Chemical Engineering at the University of 
Moratuwa to establish the first food process development 
Incubator in Sri Lanka. The incubator has already developed 
cleaner and greener technologies for Cargills businesses and 
would be developing new products and processed for the 
food industry. Dissemination of knowledge to farmers and 
small scale industries is also a key priority for the incubator. 
The project would also strive to develop new quality and food 
safety benchmarks and testing facilities accessible for the SME 
sector.

Environmental	 stewardship:	 Green	
business  

Our commitment to the environment grows from our vision 
to be the global leader in nourishing people. Food and feed 
depend upon clean water, clean soil, clean air and sunlight. 
Whether we are improving the performance of our operating 
locations or developing better agriculture practices with our 
farmer customers, we are finding ways to preserve and protect 
the environment.

The primary objectives that drive Cargills Green Business is 
to reduce, re-use and recycle energy, plastics, water and all 
other natural resources. From the responsible use of energy, 
minimizing wastage to effectively managing the environmental 
impacts of our business operation Cargills strives to ensure 
that every aspect of its day-to-day business is environmentally 
sustainable. 

Partnering the nations resurgence  

Our consistent focus on the needs of the consumer and the 
community has enabled Cargills to impact national production. 
We contribute 1% of the country’s annual rice production, 
1.8% of fruit and vegetable production and 3% of the annual 
livestock production. 

Cargills has expanded its presence islandwide touching 23 

districts of the island. It has intensified its presence in the 
Eastern province and established links with local farming 
communities in the region. The company initiated a study tour 
for 45 farmers from Ampara, Batticaloa and Trincomalee to visit 
Thambuththegama and Norochcholai and visit farmers currently 
supplying to Cargills. The farmers were given valuable exposure 
to agriculture techniques and post-harvest technologies which 
would enable them to match required product quality and 
yield desired productivity. Several other Cargills agribusiness 
ventures partnered by civil society organizations and the 
government would be in place in the East shortly. The company 
has already commenced preliminary work to begin operations 
in the North. 

Awards, certificates and recognition  
2008-	2009	

Finalist – Responsible Retail of the Year, World Retail Awards, 
2009

Platinum Band Rating – Corporate Accountability Rating 2009

Rated among Top Ten Business Establishments in Sri Lanka in 
2009  

Innovative Finance Award, 2008
 UNIDO International Conference on Sharing 

Innovative Agribusiness Solutions, Cairo. 

Outstanding Leadership Award, 2008
 Dr. P.N. Singh Foundation and Institute of Technology 

and Management, India 

Asia Retail Leadership Award, 2008 
 Asia Retail Congress, India

2nd Most Valuable Brand in Sri Lanka for Cargills Food City, 
2008 Brand Finance Index, UK

Best Knowledge Integrator, 2008
 National Business Excellence Awards, National 

Chamber of Commerce

Best Corporate Citizen Award, 2008 
 Top Ten Best Corporate Citizens Awards, Ceylon 

Chamber of Commerce
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Directors’ report 

The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 
March 2009.

Review	of	the	year
The chairman’s statement describes in brief the Group’s affairs and important events of the year.

Principal activities
Manufacturing of and trading in Food and Beverage and Distribution are the principal activities.

The	Group;

(a)  Operates a chain of supermarkets, convenience stores and a hyper market.
(b)  Distributes world renowned brands of beverages and other FMCG products.
(c)  Manufactures/produces/processes and markets processed meats, dairy ice cream, milk, jams, cordials, sauces and 

beverages.
(d)  Operates the ‘Kentucky Fried Chicken’ franchise restaurants in Sri Lanka, by processing of agricultural produce.
(e)  Operates a Hotel in hill-country.
(f)  Operates a chain of photo processing outlets.

Profit and appropriations
                                                           	Group		 																													Company	
For the year ended 31 March  2009 2008 2009 2008
  Rs.	’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000
     
The profit for the year after taxation amounted to   	539,900	  491,016  	269,251	  122,406 
After deducting the amount attributable to minority interest of   (40,446)   (43,169) -  -   
The profit attributable to shareholders was    499,454	  447,847  	269,251	  122,406 
To which profit brought forward from previous year is added   748,539   491,461  	438,458   383,252 
Adjustment for (debit)/credit balance in minority   	178,360	  (123,569) 	-    -
Transfer to General reserve   (350,00) - (350,000)  - 
Leaving an amount available to the Company for appropriation of   1,076,353	  815,739  357,709	  505,658 

From which your Directors have made appropriations as follows :     
Dividend paid for the year ended 31 March 2008     
       Interim 18.75 Cents per share    	42,000	  28,000  	42,000   28,000 
       Final 20 Cents per share   	44,800	  39,200  44,800	  39,200 
Leaving an unappropriated balance to be carried forward of 989,553	  748,539  	270,909   438,458 
   1,076,353	  815,739  	357,709	  505,658 

An interim dividend of 20 cents per share (Rs. 44,800,000) was paid on 30 April 2009 for the year ended 31 March 2009. A final 
dividend of 30 Cents per share (Rs. 67,200,000) is proposed for the year ended 31 March 2009. These will be reflected in the 
subsequent year’s financial statements. (refer note 11 to the financial statements on page 31)

Stated	capital	and	reserves	

As	at	31	March	
                                              														Group		 																													Company	
	 	 2009 2008 2009 2008
  Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Stated capital    130,723 130,723 130,723 130,723
Capital reserves     626,928 626,928 619,000 619,000
Revenue reserves   385,500 35,500 385,500 35,500
Retained earnings   989,553 748,539 270,909 438,458
  2,132,704 1,541,690 1,406,132 1,223,681

Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are given on pages 22 to 27. There were no 
changes to the accounting policies of the Group during the year other than for retirement benefit obligations as described in 
significant accounting policies.
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	 As	at	  As at 
 31	March	2009	  31 March 2008 

Mr. L R Page  86,760 86,760
Mr. V R Page  14,220,000 13,177,000
Mr. S V Kodikara   124,000 80,000
Mr. P S Mathavan  20,000 20,000
Mr. Jayantha Dhanapala - -
Mr. A T P Edirisinghe  50,000 49,280
Mr. S E C Gardiner 20,000 20,000
Mr. Sunil Mendis  20,000 20,000
Mr. Anthony A Page  4,719,000 6,706,800
Mr. J C Page  1,736,800 2,398,600
Mr. E A D Perera  20,000 20,000
Mrs. S R Thambiayah   40,000 40,000

Donations
During the year donations amounting to Rs. 44,253 (2008 - Rs. 144,119) were made by the Company.

Auditors
The retiring auditors, Messrs KPMG Ford, Rhodes, Thornton & Co. have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment as 
Auditors. The fees paid to auditors are disclosed in note 07 to the Financial Statements. As far as the Directors are aware, the 
auditors do not have any relationship (other than that of an auditor) with the Company or any of its Subsidiaries other than those 
disclosed in above note.

For and on behalf of the Board

Signed.  V R Page (Deputy Chairman / Managing Director)
Signed.  P S Mathavan (Executive Director - Finance)

Signed.  S L W Dissanayake (Company Secretary)

3 June 2009

Capital expenditure
The Group’s capital outlay on property, plant and equipment amounted to Rs. 1,096.4 Mn (2008 - Rs. 694.9 Mn) while the capital 
outlay of the Company on property, plant and equipment amounted to Rs. 934.2 Mn (2008 - Rs. 718.9 Mn). Details are given in 
note 12 to the financial statements on pages 32 and 33.

Property,	plant	and	equipment
The movement of property, plant and equipment during the year is given in note 12 to the financial statements on pages 32 and 33.

Shareholdings
The Company is a subsidiary of Ceylon Theatres PLC.

An analysis of shareholdings according to the size of holding is given on page 50.

Directorate
The Directors listed on the inner back cover have been Directors of the Company throughout the year under review except  
Mr. Jayantha Dhanapala who was co-opted to the Board on 1 June 2008. 

Messrs P. S. Mathavan, Anthony A Page and J. C. Page retire  by rotation in terms of the Company’s Articles of Association and 
being eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Jayantha Dhanapala and Mrs. S. R. Thambiayah too are due to retire consequent to attaining the age of seventy years. 
Pursuant to Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and  under and by virtue of the Special Notice given by a Shareholder 
referred to in the notice of the meeting, Mr. Jayantha Dhanapala and Mrs. S. R. Thambiayah offer themselves for re-election.

The re-election of the retiring Directors has the unanimous support of the other Directors.

Directors’ interests in contracts
The Directors’ interests in contracts and proposed contracts with the Company are included in note 31 to the financial statements 
under related party transactions on pages 43 to 46. The Directors have declared their interests at meetings of the Board.

Directors’ shareholdings
The Directors’ shareholdings in the Company were as follows:
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Companies Act No.7 of 2007 places the responsibility on 
the Directors to prepare and present financial statements for 
each year comprising a balance sheet as at year end date and 
statements of income, cash flows and changes in equity for the 
year together with the accounting policies and explanatory 
notes. The responsibility of the auditors with regard to these 
financial statements, which differ from that of the Directors, 
is set out in the Auditors’ report (page 17)

Considering the present financial position of the Company and 
the forecasts for the next year, the Directors have adopted 
the going concern basis for the preparation of these financial 
statements.

The Directors confirm that the financial statements have been 
prepared and presented in accordance with the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards, which have been consistently applied 
and supported, by reasonable and prudent judgments and 
estimates.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company 
maintains adequate accounting records to be able to disclose 
with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the 

Company and the Group and for ensuring that the financial 
statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and provide the information 
required by the Companies Act.

The Directors are responsible for the proper management of 
the resources of the Company. The internal control system 
has been designed and implemented to obtain reasonable but 
not absolute assurance that the Company is protected from 
undue risks, frauds and other irregularities. The Directors 
are satisfied that the control procedures operated effectively 
during the year.

The Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief, are 
satisfied that all statutory payments have been made up to 
date or have been provided for in these financial statements.

By order of the Board

S L W Dissanayake
Company Secretary

3 June 2009
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Independent Auditor’s report

INDEPENDENT  AUDITOR’S  REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CARGILLS (CEYLON) PLC 

Report	on	the	Financial	Statements

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements 
of Cargills (Ceylon) PLC and the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at March 
31, 2009 which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2009, and the Income Statement, Statement of Changes in 
Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, 
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory notes as set out on pages 18 to 46 of this Annual 
Report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of these Financial Statements in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: 
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate 
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that 
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Scope	of	Audit	and	Basis	of	Opinion

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial 
Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the Financial Statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence  
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Financial 
Statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which 
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit. We therefore believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, so far as appears from our examination, the 
Company maintained proper accounting records for the year 
ended March 31, 2009 and the Financial Statements give a 
true and fair view of the Company’s state of affairs as at March 
31, 2009 and its profit and cash flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at March 31, 
2009 and the profit and cash flows for the year then ended, 
in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, of the 
Company and its subsidiaries dealt with thereby, so far as 
concerns the members of the Company.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

These Financial Statements also comply with the requirements 
of Section 153(2) to 153(7) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 
2007. 

Signed.
KPMG Ford, Rhodes, Thornton & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Colombo

3 June 2009

KPMG  Ford,  Rhodes,  Thornton  &  Co	 Tel	 :	 +94	 -	 11	 242	 6426
(Chartered	Accountants)	 	 	 +94	 -	 11	 542	 6426
32A,	Sir	Mohamed	Macan	Markar	Mawatha	 Fax	 :	 +94	 -	 11	 244	 5872
P.	O.	Box	186,	 	 	 +94	 -	 11	 244	 6058
Colombo	00300	 	 	 +94	 -	 11	 254	 1249
Sri	Lanka	 	 	 +94	 -	 11	 230	 7345
	 Internet	 :	 www.lk.kpmg.com

KPMG	Ford,	Rhodes,	Thornton	&	Co.,	a	Sri	Lankan	Partnership
and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International a Swiss 
cooperative.	All	rights	reserved

A.	N.	Fernando		FCA	 S.	Sirikananthan		FCA	 M.	R.	Mithular		FCA
Ms.	M.	P.	Perera		FCA	 P.	Y.	S.	Perera		FCA	 C.	P.	Jayatilake		FCA
T.	J.	S.	Rajakarier		FCA	 W.	W.	J.	C.	Perera		FCA	 Ms.	S.	Joseph		ACA
Ms.	S.	M.	B.	Jayasekara	ACA	 W.	K.	D.	C	Abeyrathne	ACA	 S.	T.	D.	L	Perera	ACA
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Income statements

	 	 	Group	 Company

For	the	year	ended	31	March	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 Note	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Revenue 3 28,692,481 23,142,619 15,883,716 12,053,952

Cost of sales 4 (26,355,712) (21,494,510) (15,246,710) (11,342,566)

Gross profit  2,336,769 1,648,109 637,006 711,386

Other income 5 572,775 468,538 587,328 275,318

Distribution costs  (505,399) (422,046) (119,477) (120,259)

Administrative expenses  (1,032,529) (670,736) (423,310) (449,410)

Excess on acquisition  - 3,907 - -

Other expenses  (139,430) (80,573) (35,758) (7,897)

Operating profit  1,232,186 947,199 645,789 409,138 

   

Net finance costs 6	 (529,600) (340,047) (293,287) (202,150)

Profit before taxation 7 702,586 607,152 352,502 206,988

Income tax expense 8 (162,686) (116,136) (83,251) (84,582)

Net profit for the year 	 539,900 491,016 269,251 122,406

Attributable to :

Equity shareholders of the parent  499,454 447,847 269,251 122,406

Minority interest  40,446 43,169 - -

    539,900	 491,016 269,251 122,406

Earnings per share (Rs.) 10 2.23 2.00 1.20 0.55

Dividend per share (Rs.) 11 0.50 0.39 0.50 0.39

Dividend paid per share (Rs.)  0.39 0.30 0.39 0.30

The accounting policies and notes from pages 22  to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASSETS
Non-current	assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 5,091,495 4,583,244 3,361,476 2,641,340
Intangible assets 13	 299,401 58,307 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 14.1 - -	 1,668,453 535,446
Other investments 14.2 - 45,541 - 45,541
Deferred tax assets 15 21,573 25,002 - -
    5,412,469 4,712,094 5,029,929 3,222,327
Current	assets
Inventories 16	 2,649,786 2,554,005	 1,586,401 1,380,083
Trade and other receivables 17 1,123,641 729,987 463,700 213,363
Amount due from related companies 18 273,917 123,341 272,599 887,855
Short term investments 14.3 3,254 5,550 3,211 5,430
Cash and cash equivalents 21 197,668 214,208	 124,918 87,846
    4,248,266 3,627,091 2,450,829 2,574,577
Total	assets  9,660,735 8,339,185 7,480,758 5,796,904

EQUITY
Capital	and	reserves
Stated capital 19 130,723 130,723 130,723 130,723
Reserves 20 1,012,428 662,428 1,004,500 654,500
Retained earnings  989,553 748,539	 270,909 438,458
Shareholders’ fund 	 2,132,704 1,541,690	 1,406,132 1,223,681
Minority interest  - 353,818 - -
Total equity 	 2,132,704 1,895,508 1,406,132 1,223,681

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 22 754,815 532,745	 449,980 100,000
Deferred tax liability 23 310,358 243,703 266,256 192,780
Retirement benefit obligations 24 91,555 118,475 81,763 76,856
   	 1,156,728 894,923 797,999 369,636
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 25	 3,917,522 3,542,380 3,376,678 3,128,906
Current tax liability  96,841 83,557 - 65,194
Amount due to related companies 18 8,676 101,039 217,004 155,511
Dividend payable 26 7,556 6,734 7,556 6,734
Borrowings 22 2,340,708	 1,815,044 1,675,389 847,242
    6,371,303 5,548,754	 5,276,627 4,203,587
Total liabilities  7,528,031 6,443,677	 6,074,626 4,573,223
Total equity and liabilities  9,660,735 8,339,185 7,480,758 5,796,904

 
   
I certify that these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 7 of 
2007.

Signed.   S L W Dissanayake (Group Financial Controller)
  
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements. 
The accounting policies and notes from pages 22 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
These financial statements have been approved by the Board on 3 June 2009.
 
For and on behalf of the Board

Signed.   V R Page (Deputy Chairman / Managing Director)        
Signed.   P S Mathavan (Executive Director - Finance)
  
Colombo

Balance sheets

	 	 	Group	 Company

As	at	31	March	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 Note	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000
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Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax  702,586 607,152 352,502 206,988
 Adjustments for:
 Depreciation 12  700,840 567,007 340,170 170,724
 Retirement benefit obligations 24 883 27,144 276 25,222
 Amotisation of intangible assets 13 7,524 4,858 - -
 Excess on acquisition  - (3,907) - -
 Profit on sales of property, plant and equipment 5	 (4,442) (6,988) - (547)
 Loss on property, plant and equipments written offs  5,066	 -	 -	 -
 Profit from disposal of investments 5 (73,587) - (73,587) -
 Provision for investments  2,296 - 2,219 -
 Provision for inventories  1,518 (1,430) (1,127) (5,372)
 Provision for doubtful debtors  35,729 2,892 13,767 (9,440)
 Net finace costs  6 529,600 340,047 293,287 202,150
 Dividend income  5 (2,621) (6,861) (167,746) (6,861)

Operating profit before working capital changes  1,905,392 1,529,914 759,761 582,864

 Changes in working capital
   - Increase in inventories  (97,299) (379,863) (205,191) (314,095)
   - Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables (342,216) 297,211 (259,693) 47,370
   - Decrease / (increase) in related company receivables (150,576) (85,698) 635,171 645,173
   - Increase in trade and other payables  375,142 138,665 247,773 528,648
   - Increase / (decrease) in related company payables  (92,363) 18,122 61,493 (140,822)

Cash generated from operations  1,598,080 1,518,351 1,239,314 1,349,138

Taxes paid  (166,484) (76,469) (79,381) (45,124)
Interest paid  (529,600) (351,062) (293,287) (213,150)
Gratuity paid 24 (27,803) (5,388) (15,284) (5,085)
Net cash generated from operating activities  874,193 1,085,432 851,362 1,085,779

Cash flows from investing activities
Additions of property, plant and equipment 12 (1,227,613) (809,192) (1,060,306) (926,755)
Additions to intangible assets 13 (2,416) (4,049) -	 -
Acquisition of subsidiary  - (683,294) -	 -
Acquisition of minority holding of subsidiary 14.4 (462,107) - (462,107)	 -
Investment on new share issue of subsidiary  - - (670,900)	 -
Proceeds from disposal of investments  119,128 - 119,128	 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  17,898 7,407 - 928
Interest income  - 11,015 - 11,000
Dividend received  2,621 6,861 167,746 6,861
Net cash used in investing activities  (1,552,489) (1,471,252) (1,906,439) (907,966)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 22 500,000 325,000 500,000 150,000
Net proceeds from short term borrowings  563,918 3,772 445,000 (146,228)
Repayments of long term borrowings 22 (197,860) (203,280) (50,000)	 -
Dividend paid  (85,978) (66,499) (85,978) (66,499)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities  780,080	 58,993 809,022 (62,727)

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  101,784	 (326,827) (246,055) 115,086

Movement	in	cash	and	cash	equivalents
At the beginning of the year  (1,085,486)	 (758,659) (539,396) (654,482)
Movement during the year  101,784 (326,827) (246,055) 115,086
At the end of the year 21 (983,702) (1,085,486) (785,451) (539,396)

	 	 	Group	 Company

For	the	year	ended	31	March	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 Note	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Cash flow statements

The accounting policies and notes from pages 22  to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of changes in equity

   Attributable to equity holders of Parent	 	 Minority	 Total
 Stated Capital Revaluation General Retained Total interest
	 capital	 reserve	 reserve	 reserve	 earnings	 	
 Rs.	‘	000 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Group

Balance as at 1 April 2007 130,723 7,928 619,000 35,500 491,461 1,284,612 183,731 1,468,343

Net profit for the year - - - - 447,847 447,847 43,169 491,016

Adjustment for debit 

       balance in minority - - - - (123,569) (123,569) 123,569 -

Dividends - - - - (67,200) (67,200) - (67,200)

Minority share of 

       excess on acquisition - - - - - - 3,349 3,349

Balance	as	at	31	March	2008 130,723	 7,928	 619,000	 35,500	 748,539	 1,541,690	 353,818	 1,895,508

Balance as at 1 April 2008 130,723 7,928 619,000 35,500 748,539 1,541,690 353,818 1,895,508

Net profit for the year - - - - 499,454 499,454 40,446 539,900

Transferred to General reserve - - - 350,000 (350,000) - - -

Reversal of debit balance 

       adjustment in minority - - - - 178,360 178,360 (178,360) -

Dividends - - - - (86,800) (86,800) - (86,800)

Adjustment due to 

       acquisition by majority - - - - - - (215,904) (215,904)

Balance	as	at	31	March	2009 130,723	 7,928	 619,000	 385,500	 989,553	 2,132,704	 -	 2,132,704

 Stated Revaluation General Retained Total

	 capital	 reserve	 reserve	 earnings

	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Company

Balance as at 1 April 2007 130,723 619,000 35,500 383,252 1,168,475

Net profit for the year - - - 122,406 122,406

Dividends - - - (67,200) (67,200)

Balance	as	at	31	March	2008 130,723	 619,000	 35,500	 438,458	 1,223,681

Balance as at 1 April 2008 130,723 619,000 35,500 438,458 1,223,681

Net profit for the year - - - 269,251 269,251

Transferred to General reserve - - 350,000 (350,000) -

Dividends - - - (86,800) (86,800)

Balance	as	at	31	March	2009 130,723	 619,000	 385,500	 270,909	 1,406,132

The accounting policies and notes from pages 22 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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General information

Cargills (Ceylon) PLC is a quoted public limited liability company 
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered office 
of the Company is located at 40, York Street, Colombo 1. The 
Company has been re-registered under the new Companies 
Act No. 7 of 2007.

The principal activities of the Group are operation of large 
supermarket chain, “Food City” in Sri Lanka, manufacture/ 
produce/ process and marketing of “ Cargills Magic” ice cream 
and dairy products, “Kist” fruit based products “Supremo” 
meat products and franchise holder to operate Kentucky Fried 
Chicken (KFC) restaurants in Sri Lanka, by processing agricultural 
produce. Further the subsidiary, Millers Distributors Limited, 
engages in Island wide distribution of fast moving consumer 
goods, operation of a hotel in Bandarawela and operation of a 
chain of photo processing outlets.

The Company, in the financial statements, refers to Cargills 
(Ceylon) PLC and Group refers to the Company and all 
its subsidiaries whose financial statements have been 
consolidated.

Ceylon Theatres PLC is the parent company of Cargills (Ceylon) 
PLC.

Statement	of	compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with and comply with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLAS) 
laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka and the requirements of the Companies Act No. 7 of 
2007 .

1   Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation 
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These accounting policies applied by the Group are, unless 
otherwise stated, consistent with those used in the previous 
year. There were no changes to the accounting policies of 
the Group during the year other than that resulting from the 
application of SLAS  - 16, Employee Benefits (Revised 2006), 
which is applicable for financial year 2008/09. Previous 
year figures and phrases have been re-arranged, wherever 
necessary, to conform to the current year’s presentation.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLAS). 
These financial statements have been prepared under the 
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of 
free hold land.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
SLASs  requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. 
It requires management to exercise their judgment in the 

process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The 
areas where assumptions and estimate are significant to the 
consolidated financial statements are disclosed.

SLASs that are not yet effective and therefore not adopted 
by the Group

The following standards have been published and are 
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2011 or later periods:

SLAS 44 - Financial Instruments: Presentation

The objective of this standard is to establish principles 
for presenting financial instruments as liabilities or equity 
and for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. It 
applies to the classification of financial instruments, from 
the perspective of the issuer, in to financial assets, financial 
liabilities and equity instruments; the classification of related 
interest, dividends, losses and gains and the circumstances 
in which financial assets and financial liabilities should be 
offset.

The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal 
form, governs its classification on the entity’s balance sheet. 
Substance and legal form are commonly consistent, but not 
always. Some financial instruments take the legal form of 
equity but are liabilities in substance and others may combine 
features associated with equity instruments and features 
associated with financial liabilities.  Accordingly, the preference 
share that provides for mandatory redemption by the issuer 
for a fixed or determinable amount at a fixed or determinable 
future date, or gives the holder the right to require the issuer 
to redeem the instrument at or after a particular date for a 
fixed or determinable amount, is a financial liability.

SLAS 45 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement

The objective of this standard is to establish principles for 
recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities 
and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. 
 
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the 
power to govern the financial and operating policies generally 
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the 
voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting 
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are 
considered when assessing whether the Group controls 
another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the 
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They 
are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. 
 
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for 
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an 
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, 
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed 
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to 

Notes to the financial statements
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the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination 
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition 
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. 
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of 
the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is 
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than 
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, 
the difference is recognised directly in the income statement. 
 
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains 
on transactions between group companies are eliminated. 
Unrealised losses are also eliminated but considered an 
impairment indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting 
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary 
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. 

The subsidiary undertakings financial years are coterminous 
with that of the Company.

Transactions and minority interests

Minority interest is measured at the minorities’ share of the 
post acquisition fair values of the identifiable assets and 
liabilities of the acquired entity. Separate disclosure is made 
of minority interest.
 
The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with 
minority interests as transactions with parties external to 
the Group. Disposals to minority interests result in gains and 
losses for the Group are recorded in the income statement. 
Purchases from minority interests result in goodwill, being 
the difference between any consideration paid and the 
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of 
the subsidiary.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant 
influence but not control, generally accompanying a 
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. 
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity 
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The 
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified 
on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss. 
 
The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or 
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share 
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in 
reserves. The cumulative post acquisition movements are 
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. 
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals 
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other 
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further 
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments 
on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and 
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s 
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also 

eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an 
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies 
of associates have been changed where necessary to 
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. 
Dilution gains and losses in associates are recognised in the 
income statement.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations 
engaged in providing products or services that are subject 
to risks and returns that are different from those of other 
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in 
providing products or services within a particular economic 
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are 
different from those of segments operating in other economic 
environments.

 
Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the 
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates 
(‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial 
statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the 
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the 
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at 
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and 
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
recognised in the income statement.

Measurement of assets and their bases of valuation

Property,	plant	and	equipment

The property, plant and equipment are measured at cost/fair 
value less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses.
 
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes  
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition 
of the asset. When a property, plant and equipment comprise 
components which has different useful  lives, they are  accounted 
for, as separate items of property, plant and equipment. 
 
Carrying amounts of property plant and equipment are 
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not 
be recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written down 
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
 
All the property, plant and equipment are initially recorded 
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at cost. Where items of property, plant and equipment are 
subsequently revalued, any increases in the carrying amount 
are credited to revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity. 
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset 
are charged against the revaluation reserve directly in equity, 
any excess and all other decreases are charged to the income 
statement. Revaluation of property, plant and equipment are 
undertaken by professionally qualified independent valuers.
  
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount 
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. Property, plant and equipment 
are derecognised upon replacement, disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any 
gain or loss arising on derecognition of property plant and 
equipment is included in the income statement in the year it 
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance costs are 
charged to the income statement during the financial period 
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

Provision for depreciation is calculated based on their 
estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant 
and equipment other than land. The Company uses reducing 
balance method (except for the amortisation of improvements 
on leasehold buildings and buildings constructed on leasehold 
land) whereas all the subsidiaries use straight line method in 
computing depreciation.

The estimated useful lives are as follows
Freehold buildings 50 years
Plant and machinery 5 years
Office and other equipment 5 years
Furniture and fittings 5 years
IT equipment and software 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Air condition and refrigeration 5-10 years
Improvements to leasehold assets 4-10 years

Improvements on leasehold buildings and buildings 
constructed on leasehold land are amortised over the lower 
of their economic useful live or unexpired period of lease. 
 
Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and 
ceases at the earlier of the date that the assets is classified 
as held for sale and the date that the assets is derecognised.  
 
The useful life, depreciating methods and residual values 
are assessed annually or in an earlier date where any 
circumstance indicates such assessment is required. 
 
Finance	leases

Assets are classified as acquired by finance leases when 
by an agreement, the Group substantially assumes the 
risk and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset. 
Assets acquired by way of finance lease are measured at an 

amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present 
value of minimum lease payments at the inception less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment  
losses.

Operating leases

When the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks 
and rewards of an asset under the lease agreement, such 
leases are classified as operating leases. Payments under 
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the income 
statement over the period of lease on a straight line basis. 
 
Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition 
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable 
assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. 
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in 
intangible assets. Goodwill acquired in a business combination 
is tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if 
events or changes in circumstance indicate that it might be 
impaired; and carried at costs less accumulated impairment 
losses. Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for 
impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose 
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash 
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are 
expected to benefit from the business combination in which 
the goodwill arose.

Franchisee	fee

Franchisee fee are shown at historical cost. Franchisee 
fee have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated 
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of 
Franchisee fee over their estimated useful life of 10 years. 
 
Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on 
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use 
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their 
estimated useful life of 4 years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer 
software programmes are recognised as an expense as 
incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production 
of identifiable and unique software products controlled by 
the Group, and that will probably generate economic benefits 
exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible 
assets. Costs include the software development employee 
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. 
Computer software development costs recognised as assets 
are amortised over their estimated useful lives.

Notes to the financial statements contd...
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Impairment of assets - tangible and intangible

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, are not subject to 
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets 
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment 
annually or at an earlier date where events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the income 
statement for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 
 
Investments

Quoted and unquoted investments held on long term basis are 
classified as non- current investments and are measured at cost 
less impairment losses. The cost of the investment is the cost 
of acquisition inclusive of brokerage and cost of transaction. 
Provision for impairment is made in the income statement, 
when there has been a decline other than temporary in the 
value of investments, determined on an individual basis.  

Marketable securities which have been classified under 
short term investments are valued at lower of cost and 
market value, on an aggregate portfolio basis. Market value 
is calculated by reference to closing share values as at the 
balance sheet date published by the Colombo Stock Exchange. 
 
Inventories

Inventories  are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
normal course of business less estimated cost of realisation 
and/or cost of conversion from their existing state to saleable 
condition. 
 
The cost of each category of inventory of the Group is 
determined on the following basis.

Raw Materials - Actual cost on First In First   
  Out - (FIFO) basis

Finished goods 
and work-in-progress  - Directly attributable 
  manufacturing cost

Merchandising goods - Actual cost on First In First   
  Out - (FIFO) basis 

Other inventories - Actual cost

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised at the amounts that they are 
estimated to realise less provision for impairment. A provision 
for impairment of trade receivables is established when there 
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect 
all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. 
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that 
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, 
and default or delinquency in payments are considered 
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount 

of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the estimated realisable value. The amount of 
the provision is recognised in the income statement within 
selling and distribution costs. When a trade receivable is 
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account 
for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts 
previously written off are credited in the income statement.

Cash	and	cash	equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and at bank 
and short term highly liquid investments, readily convertible 
to known amounts.

For the purpose of cash flow statements, cash and cash 
equivalents comprise cash in hand and at bank net of 
outstanding bank overdraft.

Cash flow statement is prepared based on the indirect 
method.

Stated	capital

Ordinary shares and Share premium are classified as stated 
capital.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new 
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from 
the proceeds.

Borrowings

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the 
Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet 
date.

Liabilities and provisions

Defined benefit plan – gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a post employment benefit plan other 
than a defined contribution plan. The liability recognised in 
the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plan is the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance 
sheet date. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after 
the balance sheet date are discounted to present value. 
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by 
independent actuaries using Projected Unit Credit Method 
(PUC) as recommended by SLAS - 16, Employees benefits. The 
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined 
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows. The 
gratuity liability was based on the actuarial valuation carried 
out.

The actuarial gains and losses are charged or credited to 
income statement in the period in which they arise.

The assumptions based on which the results of the actuarial 
valuation was determined, are included in Note 24 to the 
financial statements.
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However, according to the Payment of Gratuity Act No.12 of 
1983, the liability for the gratuity payment to an employee 
arises only on the completion of 5 years of continued service 
with the Company.

Defined contribution plan - Employees’ Provident Fund and 
Employees’ Trust Fund

A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan 
under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate  
entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay 
further amounts.

All the employees who are eligible for Employees’ Provident 
Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund are covered by relevant 
contribution funds in line with the respective statutes. 
Employer’s contribution to the defined contribution plans 
are recognised as an expense in the income statement when 
incurred.

Liabilities

Liabilities classified as current liabilities in the balance sheet 
are those obligations payable on demand or within one year 
from the balance sheet date. Noncurrent liabilities are those 
obligations which fall due for payment after one year from the 
balance sheet date.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 
legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate of the amount of such obligation can be made.

All contingent liabilities are disclosed, as notes to the financial 
statements unless the outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets if exist, are disclosed, when inflow of 
economic benefit is probable.

Commitments

All material commitments as at the balance sheet date have 
been identified and disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements.

Income statement

Presentation

The income statement is presented on the “function of 
expenses” method, as it represents fairly the elements of 
Company performance and prescribed by Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards.

Turnover

The turnover of the Company and Group represents invoiced 
value of goods to customers other than to companies in the 
Group, net of discounts and returns.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that 
the economic benefit will flow to the Group and the revenue 
can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of 
trade discounts and value added taxes, net of sales within the 
Group.

The following specific criteria are used to recognise revenue.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
buyer, the consideration is recoverable, the associated costs 
and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably and 
there is no continuing management involvement with the 
goods.

Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues.

Dividend income is recognised when it is received (cash 
basis)

Gains or losses of revenue nature arising from the disposal of 
property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets, 
including investments, are accounted for in the income 
statement, after deducting from the net sales proceeds on 
disposal the carrying amount of such assets.

All other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Expenditure recognition

Expenses are recognised in the income statement on the basis 
of a direct association between the cost incurred and the 
earning of specific items of income. All expenses incurred in 
the running of the business and in maintaining the property, 
plant and equipment in a state of efficiency has been charged 
to the income statement.

Borrowing	costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in 
which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax

The provision for income tax is based on the element of 
income and expenditure in the financial statements and is 
computed in accordance with the provisions of the Inland 
Revenue Act.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxation is the tax attributable to the temporary 
differences that arise when the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities and their value derived based on the taxation 
rules (tax base).

Notes to the financial statements contd...
For the year ended 31 March 2009
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Deferred taxation is provided based on the balance sheet 
liability method on the temporary differences at the balance 
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused 
tax losses only to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can 
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 
to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at tax rates 
that are expected to apply to the year when the assets is 
realised or liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted as at the balance 
sheet date.

Segment information

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that 
is engaged either in providing products or services (business/
industry segment) or in providing products or services within 
a particular economic environment geographical segment), 
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from 
those of other segments.

The activities / businesses of the Group fall under the Food 
& Beverages and Distributor categories. There are no 
distinguishable components to be identified as geographical 
segment for the Group. The business segments are reported 
based on the Group’s management and internal reporting 
structures.

Inter segment pricing is determined at prices mutually agreed 
by the companies.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly 
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated 
on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise 
income-earning assets and revenues, interest bearing loans, 
borrowings and expenses, corporate assets and expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during 
the period to acquire segment assets, which are expected to 
be used for more than one accounting period.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is 
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements 
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the 
Company’s shareholders.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are 

based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances.

2		Risk	Management

Credit	risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits 
with banks as well as credit exposure to customers including 
outstanding receivables. For bank and financial institutions 
only rated financial institutions are accepted. The credit 
control assesses as the credit quality of customers, taking into 
account their financial position, past experience and other 
factors. The individual risk limits are set based on internal 
ratings in accordance with limits set by the Board. The 
utilisation of credit limits are regularly monitored.

Liquidity risk

Effective liquidity risk management includes maintaining 
sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of 
funding from adequate amount of committed credit facilities. 
The Group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining 
sufficient cash reserves and committed credit lines.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially 
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. 
The borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash 
flow interest rate risk whilst borrowings at fixed rates exposes 
the Group to interest rate risk. The Group analyses its interest 
rate exposure on a dynamic basis.

Notes to the financial statements contd...
For the year ended 31 March 2009
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3		Revenue	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

3.1		Gross	revenue
Gross revenue 29,466,984 23,521,051 16,150,383 12,260,985
Turnover tax (774,503) (378,432) (266,667) (207,033)
Net turnover 28,692,481 23,142,619 15,883,716 12,053,952 

3.2	Business	segment	analysis
Food and beverages 28,223,285 24,994,877 15,858,674 12,005,561
Wholesale distribution 2,699,202 189,409 25,042 48,391
Leisure 37,242 1,907 -	 -
Photo processing 74,630 2,892 -	 -
 31,034,359 25,189,085 15,883,716 12,053,952
Inter segment sales (2,341,878) (2,046,466) -	 -
 28,692,481 23,142,619	 15,883,716 12,053,952

3.3	Geographical	dispersion	of	turnover
 The Group does not distinguish its turnover into significant geographical segments. The entirety of the turnover consists of 
turnover within Sri Lanka.

4	Cost	of	sales
 Cost of sales of the Company and Group includes direct operating costs of super markets, factories, restaurants and distribution 
operations.

5		Other	income	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Dividend income 2,621 6,861	 167,746 6,861
Rental income 18,934 22,980 22,759 16,650
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 4,442 6,988 - 547
Merchandising income 455,432 400,503 314,745	 242,665
Profit on sale of investments 73,587 - 73,587 -
Exchange gain / (loss) 7,376 (84) (117) (84)
Sundry income 10,383 31,290 8,608 8,679
 572,775 468,538 587,328 275,318

6  Net finance costs	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Finance	cost
Interest expense on
 - Commercial papers and loans 109,775	 146,262 60,807 49,567
 - Bank overdrafts 256,144 166,709 161,900 130,937
 - Other loans and bank charges 163,351 37,475 70,250 32,030
 - Staff security deposits 330 616 330 616
  529,600 351,062 293,287 213,150
Finance	income
Interest income on
 - Current account balances of related companies - (11,015) - (11,000)
Net finance cost 529,600 340,047 293,287 202,150

Notes to the financial statements contd...
For the year ended 31 March 2009
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	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Profit before taxation is stated after charging all expenses 
including the following :

Personnel cost (Note 7 (a)) 1,697,130 1,362,116 906,188 736,800
Auditors’ remuneration
 -  for audit 2,002 1,210 500 385
 -  for other services 300 147 75 60
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Note 12) 700,840 567,007 340,170 170,724
Donations 101 282 44 144
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 13) 7,524 4,858 -	 -
Foreign exchange (gain) / loss (7,376) 84 117 84
Directors’ emoluments 25,990 31,440 17,848 24,108

7 Profit before taxation
 

(a)  Staff costs	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

 Salaries, wages and other costs 1,594,314 1,256,000 851,099 665,174
 Pension costs - defined benefit plan (Note 24) 883 27,144 276 25,222
 Defined contribution plan cost- EPF and ETF 101,933 78,972 54,813 46,404
  1,697,130 1,362,116 906,188 736,800
 Number of employees as at 31 March 5,206 5,081 4,229 4,088

8  Income tax expense   Group Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Income tax [note 8 (d)]  96,819 86,338 - 64,549
Social Responsibility Levy  1,662 863 - 645
Irrecoverable ESC (written back) / written off  (28,947) 2,968 -	 -
Dividend tax  23,185 2,250	 9,775	 -
Under / (over) provision  (117) 2,750 - 2,922
Deferred tax [note 8 (e)]  70,084 20,967 73,476 16,466
  162,686 116,136	 83,251 84,582

(a) The Company and its subsidiaries other than which enjoy a tax holiday or are exempt from income tax as referred below in 
note 8(b), are liable for income tax at 35% on their taxable income.

(b) Subsidiary companies enjoying tax holiday/exempt from income tax.

 Cargills Retail (Private) Limited - In terms of the agreement entered into with the Board of Investment (BOI) of Sri Lanka, the 
company enjoyed tax holiday until 30 September 2007 and became liable for income tax from 1 October 2007 at 35% tax 
rate. 

 Cargills Quality Dairies (Private) Limited, Cargills Quality Foods (Private) Limited, CPC Agrifoods Limited, Cargills Food 
Processors (Private) Limited and Cargills Food Services (Private) Limited are exempt from income tax in accordance with the 
provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No. 38 of 2000 and Act No. 10 of 2006 and subsequent amendments thereto.

(c) During the year the Company and the subsidiaries paid Economic Service Charge (ESC) amounting to Rs. 53.2 Mn and Rs. 53.3 
Mn respectively.

Notes to the financial statements contd...
For the year ended 31 March 2009
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(d) Reconciliation between income tax charge 	 	Group	 Company
 and profit before tax is given below :	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Profit before tax 702,586 607,152 352,502 206,988
Aggregate disallowed expenses 857,020 545,770 375,151 230,867
Aggregate allowable expenses (800,012) (559,323) (545,833) (232,080)
Aggregate other income (58,202) 22,007 (241,332) 20
Aggregate exempt income (467,475) (415,434) - (21,370)
Adjusted profit (a) 233,917 200,172 (59,512) 184,425

Tax losses brought forward 498,161 447,070 - -
Tax losses added (b) 68,360 58,010 59,512 -
Tax losses utilised (c) (16,802) (6,919) - -
Tax losses carried forward 549,719 498,161 59,512 -

Taxable income (a+b+c) 285,475	 251,263 - 184,425

Income tax @ 35% 94,495 85,135 - 64,549
Income tax @ 15% 2,324 1,203 -	 -
Income tax expense 96,819 86,338 - 64,549

Notes to the financial statements contd...
For the year ended 31 March 2009

(e)  Deferred tax	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Deferred tax expense arising from
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 78,878 23,969 96,022 23,514
Retirement benefit obligation 9,461 (6,697) (1,717) (7,048)
Tax losses (18,255) 3,695 (20,829) -
Deferred tax charge 70,084 20,967	 73,476 16,466

Deferred tax has been computed taking into consideration the revised tax rates effective from 1 April 2007 which is 35% for all 
standard rate companies. The deferred tax effect on undistributed reserves of subsidiaries has not been recognized since the  
parent can control the timing of the reversal of these temporary differences.

Temporary differences associated with Cargills Retail (Private) Limited, CPC Agrifoods Limited and Cargills Quality Dairies (Private) 
Limited, subsidiary companies for which a deferred tax assets have not been recognised, are disclosed as follows.

  Temporary Tax effect on
  differences temporary
   differences
  Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

 Property, plant and equipment 350,040 122,514
 Retirement benefit obligations 6,984 2,444
 Carried forward losses 388,161 135,856
  745,185 260,814

The Management recognizes deferred tax assets only when it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. It is probable that taxable profits will not be available against which the above 
deductible temporary differences amounting to Rs 745 Mn can be utilised in accordance with SLAS 14 - Income taxes (Revised 
2005)
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10   Earnings per share	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rs. ‘000) 499,454   447,847  	269,251	 122,406  

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 224,000,000		 224,000,000 	 	224,000,000	  224,000,000  

Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 2.23  2.00     	1.20    0.55  
 
Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of Cargills (Ceylon) PLC divided 
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. The number of issued and fully paid ordinary shares 
was increased from 5,600,000 to 224,000,000 consequent to the sub division effective from 25 April 2008.

11   Dividend per share	 	Group	 Company

	 		 	 2009	 2008	 	 2009	 2008
	 		 Rs.	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Dividend for the year
 Interim - proposed 0.20 44,800 42,000 0.20 44,800 42,000
 Final - proposed 0.30 67,200 44,800 0.30 67,200 44,800
   0.50 112,000 86,800 0.50 112,000 86,800

An interim divided of 20 Cents per share (Rs. 44,800,000) was paid on 30 April 2009 for the year ended 31 March 2009. A final 
dividend of 30 Cents per share (Rs. 67,200,000) is proposed for the year ended 31 March 2009. The interim dividend paid on 30 
April 2009 and the proposed dividend have not been recognised as at the balance sheet date in accordance with SLAS 12 (Revised 
2005) - Events after the Balance Sheet Date.

Notes to the financial statements contd...
For the year ended 31 March 2009

9   Segmental profit	 	 	Group	 Company
	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

 Segmental profit before unallocated overheads
 Food & beverages 1,486,775 1,227,109	 631,998 701,708
 Wholesale distribution operation 214,965 15,430 5,008 9,678
 Photo processing 4,525 1,376 -	 -
 Leisure 3,876 153 -	 -
  1,710,141 1,244,068 637,006 711,386
 Unallocated overheads (491,986) (325,759) (181,722) (325,759)
 Dividend income 2,621 6,861 167,746 6,861
 Rental income 18,934 22,980 22,759 16,650
 Amortisation of intangible assets (7,524) (4,858) - - 
 Amortisation of Reserve on consolidation - 3,907 - -
 Net finance costs (529,600) (340,047) (293,287) (202,150)
 Income tax expense (162,686) (116,136) (83,251) (84,582)
 Profit after taxation 539,900 491,016 269,251 122,406
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12			Property,	plant	and	 Freehold Freehold Expenditure Plant, Motor  Total Total
         equipment land building incurred on machinery vehicles 2009 2008
	 	 	 leasehold	 and	others
   building
	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000

Group

Cost / valuation
As at 1 April 2008 957,106 623,360 1,059,365 3,654,136 285,989 6,579,956 5,533,193
Additions - 77,945 280,817 672,880 64,750 1,096,392 694,923
On acquisition of subsidiary - - - - - - 363,991
Disposals - - (1,006) (19,684) (10,257) (30,947) (12,151)
As	at	31	March 957,106 701,305 1,339,176 4,307,332 340,482 7,645,401 6,579,956

Depreciation / amortisation
As at 1 April 2008 - 152,936 522,900 1,457,234 148,224 2,281,294 1,726,019
Charge for the year - 36,612 135,879 476,196 52,153 700,840 567,007
Disposals - - (253) (6,402) (5,770) (12,425) (11,732)
As	at	31	March - 189,548 658,526 1,927,028 194,607 2,969,709 2,281,294

Net book value
As at 31 March 957,106 511,757 680,650 2,380,304 145,875	 4,675,692
Capital work in progress - - - - - 415,803
 957,106 511,757  680,650 2,380,304 145,875 5,091,495

As at 1 April 2008 957,106 470,424 536,465 2,196,902 137,765  4,298,662
Capital work in progress - - - - -  284,582
 957,106 470,424 536,465 2,196,902 137,765  4,583,244

 Freehold Freehold Expenditure Plant, Motor  Total Total
 land building incurred on machinery vehicles 2009 2008
	 	 	 leasehold	 and	others
   building
	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000

Company

Cost / valuation
As at 1 April 2008 700,923 182,032 398,642 1,859,859 96,672 3,238,128 2,521,500
Additions - 77,011 249,530 580,332 27,278 934,151 718,898
Disposals - - - - - - (2,270)
As	at	31	March 700,923 259,043 648,172 2,440,191 123,950	 4,172,279 3,238,128

Depreciation / amortisation
As at 1 April 2008 - 13,257 244,680 570,162 25,971	 854,070 685,235
Charge for the year - 3,376 65,360 251,061 20,373 340,170 170,724
Disposals - - - - - - (1,889)
As	at	31	March - 16,633 310,040 821,223 46,344 1,194,240 854,070

Net book value
As at 31 March 700,923 242,410 338,132 1,618,968 77,606	 2,978,039
Capital work in progress - - - - - 383,437
 700,923 242,410 338,132 1,618,968 77,606 3,361,476

As at 1 April 2008 700,923 168,776 153,962 1,289,697 70,701  2,384,058
Capital work in progress - - - - -  257,282
 700,923 168,776 153,962 1,289,697 70,701  2,641,340

Notes to the financial statements contd...
As at 31 March 2009
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(a) Expenditure incurred on leasehold building represent the cost of civil work incurred in setting up new outlets on leasehold 
premises.

(b) Freehold land owned by the Company was revalued as at 31 March 2003 by an independent professional valuer on a 
contractor’s principle basis and the revalued amount was accordingly incorporated in the financial statements.

 This revaluation has been carried out in conformity with the requirements of the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No. 18 
“Property, plant and equipment”. The surplus on revaluation was credited to the revaluation reserve account.

(c ) The details of assets mortgaged for banking facilities obtained have been given in the note 22(c) to the financial statements.

(d) The carrying amount of the revalued freehold land as at 31 March 2009 that would have been included in the financial 
statements had the freehold land been carried at cost is Rs. 14.19 Mn.

(e) Depreciation expense of Rs. 561.5 Mn (2008-Rs. 492.6 Mn) for the Group and Rs. 304.4 Mn (2008-Rs. 159 Mn) for the 
Company has been charged in cost of goods sold, Rs. 103.7 Mn (2008-Rs. 41.1 Mn) for the Group and Rs. 32.4 Mn (2008-
Rs.8.7 Mn) for the Company in distribution and other expenses and Rs. 35.6 Mn (2008-Rs. 33.3 Mn) for the Group and Rs. 3.3 
Mn (2008-Rs. 2.9 Mn) for the Company in administrative expenses.

(f) Capital work in progress consists of expenditure incurred on projects where operations had not completed as at the balance 
sheet date.

13  Intangible assets  Good will Franchisee fee Software  Total 

	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000
	  
Group

Gross	value
As at 1 April 47,841 47,841 63,385 59,336 9,314 -	 120,540 107,177
On acquisition of subsidiary - - - - - 9,314 - 9,314
Additions 246,202 -	 2,416 4,049 - - 248,618 4,049
As at 31 March 294,043 47,841 65,801 63,385 9,314 9,314	 369,158 120,540

Amortisation 
As at 1 April 36,450 36,450 25,783 20,925 - - 62,233 57,375
Amortisation for the year - - 5,081 4,858	 2,443 - 7,524 4,858
As at 31 March 36,450 36,450 30,864 25,783 2,443 - 69,757 62,233

Balance	as	at	31	March	-	net 257,593 11,391 34,937 37,602 6,871 9,314	 299,401	 58,307

Goodwill as at the balance sheet date has been tested for impairment and no impairment was found in carrying value. Recoverable 
values  have been estimated based on the fair value less cost to sell for the purpose of the above test.

Amortisation of intangible assets of Rs. 5.1 Mn (2008 - Rs. 4.9 Mn) has been charged in cost of goods sold and Rs. 2.4 Mn (2008 
- Nil) in administrative expenses.

Notes to the financial statements contd...
As at 31 March 2009
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14   Investments	 No.	of		 Holding	 Market	Value	 Group	 	 Company
	 	 Shares	 	 at	31	March	 	 	
	 	 	 	 2009	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

14.1   Investments in subsidiaries
 Cargills Retail (Pvt) Ltd 47,500,002 100%  - - 475,000 475,000
 Cargills Quality Foods (Pvt) Ltd 4,860,291 100%  - - 1,193,453 60,446
     - - 1,668,453	 535,446
14.2   Other Investments
Quoted : 

 CT Land Development PLC    - 29,610 - 29,610
 Lanka Ceramics PLC    - 15,931 - 15,931
     - 45,541 - 45,541
14.3	Short	term	investments
Quoted : 

 Lanka IOC PLC 200,000 	 3,200 5,400 5,400 5,400 5,400
 Sierra Cables PLC 49,500  54 150 150 30 30
    3,254 5,550 5,550 5,430 5,430
 Provision for fall in value   - (2,296) - (2,219) -
   	 3,254 3,254 5,550	 3,211 5,430

(a ) Cargills Quality Foods (Private) Limited and Cargills Retail (Private) Limited are subsidiaries of Cargills (Ceylon) PLC.

(b) CPC Agrifoods Limited, CPC Lanka Limited, Cargills Quality Dairies (Private) Limited, Cargills Distributors (Private) Limited, 
Cargills Food Processors (Private) Limited and Millers Distributors Limited are subsidiaries of Cargills Quality Foods (Private) 
Limited (CQF). The financial statements of the said subsidiaries of CQF have been consolidated as 100% subsidiaries in view 
of the minority shareholders (subscriber shares) confirming that they hold the shares in trust for CQF.

(c) Cargills Food Services (Private) Limited (CFS) is considered as a 100% subsidiary of Cargills Food Processors (Private) Limited 
(CFP) in view of the two shareholders of CFS holding the shares in trust for CFP.

(d) Pursuant to the re-structuring undertaken within the Ceylon Theatres Group, Cargills (Ceylon) PLC sold its holdings in CT Land 
Development PLC and Lanka Ceramic PLC.

(e) The market value of quoted investments as at 31 March 2009, as quoted by the Colombo Stock Exchange amounted to 
Rs.3,254,450 (2008 - Rs. 140,835,326)

14.4  Acquisition of minority share holding

Pursuant to the re - structuring undertaken within the Ceylon Theatres Group,  the Company acquired the minority share holding 
(46.16% ) of Cargills Quality Foods (Private) Limited by acquiring 1,343,333 ordinary shares at Rs. 344/- on 30 September 2008.

    	 Rs.	‘000

 Investment   	 462,107
 Minority interest as at 30 September 2008   (215,905)
 Goodwill on acquisition    246,202

Notes to the financial statements contd...
As at 31 March 2009
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15  Deferred tax assets	 	Group

	 		 2009	 2008	
	 		 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000
	 	
As at 1 April 25,002 18,674
On acquisition of subsidiary - 6,396
Charge for the year (3,429) (68)
As at 31 March 21,573 25,002

Deferred tax assets as at the year end is made up as follows.

Deferred tax arising from
 - temporary differences of property, plant and equipment (220) (5,641)
 - temporary differences of retirement benefit obligations 465 11,494
 - carried forward tax losses 21,328 19,149
   21,573 25,002

16  Inventories	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Raw materials 318,908 285,112 - -
Work in progress 6,170 6,072 - -
Finished goods 37,335 - - -
Merchandising stock for sale 2,212,544 2,233,296 1,552,114 1,356,280
Food and beverages - restaurant operations 16,931 13,134 - -
Consumables 43,701 38,449 21,930 24,930
 2,635,589 2,576,063 1,574,044 1,381,210
Provision for obsolete inventories (31,642) (30,124) - (1,127)
 2,603,947 2,545,939 1,574,044 1,380,083
Goods in transit 45,839 8,066 12,357 -
 2,649,786 2,554,005 1,586,401 1,380,083

Inventories amounting to Rs. 200 Mn have been mortgaged by the Company for bank facilities obtained [refer note 22(c)]

17   Trade and other receivables	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Trade receivables 523,304 405,645 102,326 51,652
Provision for bad & doubtful debtors for trade receivables (87,888) (52,159) (13,768)	 -
 435,416 353,486 88,558 51,652
Pre payments and deposits 265,767 158,180 236,450 94,636
Other receivables 129,949 65,269 49,188	 2,584
Loans and advances [refer note 17 (a)] 6,007 2,970 5,839 2,970
Tax recoverable [refer note 17 (b)] 286,502 150,082 83,665 61,521
 1,123,641 729,987 463,700 213,363

Notes to the financial statements contd...
As at 31 March 2009
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(a) Loans and advances represents loans to employees 	 	Group	 Company

						and	the	movement	during	the	year	is	as	follows	:	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

As at 1 April 2,970 2,381 2,970 2,381
Loans granted 15,468 8,699 14,945 8,699
 18,438 11,080 17,915 11,080

Repayments (12,431) (8,110) (12,076) (8,110)
As at 31 March 6,007 2,970 5,839 2,970

(b) Tax recoverable

       This includes Economic Service Charges, VAT recoverable, WHT recoverable and Income tax overpayments.

18			Amounts	due	from/due	to	related	companies	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Amounts due from subsidiaries
 Cargills Retail (Pvt) Ltd - - - 173,826
 Cargills Quality Foods (Pvt) Ltd - - - 609,052
 Cargills Quality Dairies (Pvt) Ltd - - - 100,000
  - - - 882,878
Amounts	due	from	holding	company
 Ceylon Theatres PLC 1,685 1,578 1,512 1,512

Amounts	due	from	other	related	companies
 Ceylon Hotels Corporation PLC 135 142 - 116
 CT Properties PLC 267,583 117,915 267,577	 -
 CT Films (Pvt) Ltd 2,692 2,643 2,612 2,611
 CT Land Development PLC 1,316 - 898 11
 Galle Face Hotel 1994 Ltd 159 - - -
 Galle Face Hotel Co Ltd 70 272 - 35
 Kandy Hotels (1938) Co Ltd 197 104 - 5
 Lanka Tiles PLC - 687 - 687
 Renuka Hotel Ltd 80 - - -
  272,232 121,763 271,087 3,465
 Total	amount	due	from	related	companies 273,917 123,341 272,599 887,855

Amounts due to subsidiaries
 Cargills Retail (Pvt) Ltd - - 13,596	 -
 Cargills Quality Foods (Pvt) Ltd - -	 131,031	 -
 Cargills Distributors (Pvt) Ltd - - 10,464 25,300
 Cargills Quality Dairies (Pvt) Ltd - - 23,946 21,689
 CPC Agrifoods Ltd - - 21,710	 -
 CPC Lanka Ltd - - 2,455 18,498
 Millers Distributors Ltd - -	 6,406 89,554
  - - 209,608 155,041
Amounts	due	to	holding	company
 Ceylon Theatres PLC - 100,140 - -

Amounts	due	to	other	related	companies 
 CT Land Development PLC - 45 -	 -
 Dialog Telekom PLC 7,202 - 7,202 -
 Kalamazoo Systems Ltd - 46 - 46
 Lanka Ceramics PLC 194 398	 194 398
 Lanka Walltile Meepe (Pvt) Ltd - 26 - 26
 Unidil Packaging (Pvt) Ltd 1,280 384 -	 -
  8,676 899	 7,396	 470
	 Total	amount	due	to	related	companies 8,676 101,039 217,004 155,511

Notes to the financial statements contd...
As at 31 March 2009
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19			Stated	capital	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Issued and fully paid :
224,000,000 Ordinary shares 130,723 130,723 130,723 130,723

 In accordance with Section 58 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, share capital and share premium have been re-classified as 
stated capital. 
 
The number of issued and fully paid ordinary shares was increased from 5,600,000 to 224,000,000 consequent to the sub - 
division effective from 25 April 2008.

20		Reserves	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Capital	reserves
Revaluation reserve 619,000 619,000 619,000	 619,000
Capital reserve on consolidation 7,928 7,928
 626,928 626,928 619,000 619,000
Revenue	reserve
General reserve 385,500 35,500 385,500 35,500
 1,012,428 662,428 1,004,500 654,500

 
Revaluation reserve consists of net surplus resulting from the revaluation of property, plant & equipment.

 Capital reserve consists of share of capital reserve resulting from consolidation.

 General reserve represents the amount set aside by the directors for general applications.

21		Cash	and	cash	equivalents	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Cash at banks and in hand 197,668 214,208 124,918 87,846

Cash at banks and in hand 197,668 214,208 124,918 87,846

Bank overdrafts (1,181,370)	 (1,299,694) (910,369) (627,242)

 (983,702) (1,085,486) (785,451) (539,396)

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, the year-end	cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following:	

Notes to the financial statements contd...
As at 31 March 2009
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22			Borrowings	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Current
Current portion of long term loans 275,420 195,350 150,020 50,000
Commercial papers and short term loans 883,918 320,000 615,000 170,000
Bank overdrafts 1,181,370 1,299,694 910,369 627,242
 2,340,708 1,815,044 1,675,389 847,242
Non	-	current
Bank borrowings 754,815 532,745 449,980 100,000 
 754,815 532,745 449,980 100,000
Total borrowings 3,095,523 2,347,789 2,125,369 947,242

(a)			Non	current
As at 1 April 728,095 606,375 150,000 -
Loans received 500,000 325,000	 500,000 150,000
Repayments (197,860) (203,280) (50,000) -
As at 31 March 1,030,235 728,095 600,000 150,000
Falling due within one year (275,420) (195,350) (150,020) (50,000) 
 754,815 532,745 449,980 100,000

Repayment during  1 - 2 years 325,820	 180,880 150,020 50,000
 2 - 5 years 428,995 351,865 299,960 50,000
 Above 5 years - - - -
  754,815 532,745	 449,980 100,000

Notes to the financial statements contd...
As at 31 March 2009

(b)    Details of all loans outstanding at the balance sheet date are set out below: 	 	
	 	
 Institution & facility Principal amount Repayment term & interest rate
	 	 Rs.	‘	000

	 Cargills	(Ceylon) PLC
 Bank overdrafts 
 - Bank of Ceylon 115,000 Average interest rate of 24.00% 
 - HSBC 250,000 Average interest rate of 18.00%
 - Nation Trust Bank 200,000 Average interest rate of 20.20%
 - Standard Chartered Bank 25,000 Average interest rate of 20.00%
 - Commercial Bank 400,000 Average interest rate of 20.40%
 - Deutsche Bank 100,000 Average interest rate of 18.60%
 - Seylan Bank 100,000 Average interest rate of 21.00%
 - Sampath Bank 100,000 Average interest rate of 20.64%
 - Amana Investments 100,000 Average interest rate of 18.50%
	 Bank	loans
 Long term loans
 - HSBC 150,000 36 monthly instalments of Rs. 4.17 Mn per month, commencing from  

  April 2008 at average interest rate of 19.20% for the year. 

 - Sampath Bank 500,000 59 monthly instalments of Rs. 8.33 Mn per month, commencing from  
  April 2009 and final instalment of Rs. 8.24 Mn at average interest rate  
  of 19.95% for the year.

 Short term loans
 - Nation Trust Bank 200,000 Average interest rate of 20.00% 
 - Standard Chartered Bank 475,000 Average interest rate of 18.00% 
 - Commercial Bank 10,000 To be paid after 6 months (Sep 2009) at average interest of 12.00%
 - Sampath Bank 100,000 Average interest rate of 17.5%  

Cargills Retail (Private) Limited
	 Bank	loans
 - Commercial Bank 375,000 62 monthly instalments of Rs. 6.25 Mn per month, commencing 
   from March 2005 at average interest rate of 19.5% for the year.

 - DFCC 150,000 60 monthly instalments of Rs. 2.5 Mn per month, commencing from  
  March 2009 at average interst rate of 15.5%.
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 Institution & facility Principal amount Repayment term & interest rate
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 	 	

Notes to the financial statements contd...
As at 31 March 2009

(c)  The securities offered for loans are set out below:

 Loan Security offered

 Cargills (Ceylon) PLC 
 Bank	of	Ceylon
 - Overdraft Trading stock of 15 locations.
 
 HSBC
 - Overdraft - 
 - TOD facility of Rs 50 Mn - 
 - Long term loan Primary mortgage for Rs. 150 Mn over imported equipment.
 
 Nation Trust Bank
 - Overdraft -
 - Letter of credit -
 - Commercial paper -
 
	 Standard	Chartered
 - Overdraft Undertaking to mortgage land and building at Staple Street, Colombo - 2
 - Money market loan facility of 475 Mn for Rs. 75 Mn  and Corporate guarantee from Ceylon Theatres PLC for
 - Commercial paper Rs. 75 Mn.
 
 Commercial	Bank
 - Overdraft 
 - TOD facility of Rs 250 Mn An agreement to mortgage land and building at Kandy for Rs. 100 Mn and
 - Loan facility of 30 Mn Corporate guarantee from Ceylon Theatres PLC for Rs. 50 Mn.

Cargills Quality Foods (Private) Limited

 Bank overdraft
 - Commercial Bank 40,000 Average interest rate of 20.40%

 Bank	loan
 - Commercial Bank  300,000 71 monthly instalments of Rs. 4.2 Mn per month, commencing from  

  July 2007 and final instalment of Rs. 1.8 Mn at average interest rate of  
  18.5% for the year.

Cargills Quality Dairies (Private) Limited

 Bank overdraft
 - Seylan Bank 80,000 Average interest rate of 21.00%

CPC Agrifoods Limited
 Bank overdraft
 - Commercial Bank 50,000 Average interest rate of 20.40%

Cargills Food Processors (Private) Limited

 Bank overdraft
 - Commercial Bank 50,000 Average interest rate of 20.40%

Millers Distributors Limited

 Bank overdrafts
 - Hatton National Bank 25,000 Average interest rate of 20.70%
 - Commercial Bank 165,000 Average interest rate of 20.40%
 - Standard Chartered Bank 250,000 Average interest rate of 19.70%

	 Bank	loans
	 Short term loans
 - Hatton National Bank 160,000 Average interest rate of 20.10%
 - Standard Chartered Bank 200,000 Average interest rate of 19.25%

}
}
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 Deutsche Bank
 - Overdraft -  
 
	 Seylan	Bank
 - Overdraft Stock mortgage for Rs. 100 Mn and demand promissory note for Rs. 100 Mn.
 
	 Sampath	Bank
	 - Overdraft -  
 - Money market loan facility of Rs. 100 Mn -  
 - Long term loan facility of Rs. 500 Mn Primary mortgage for Rs. 400 Mn over machinery and equipment of Rs. 535 

Mn, imported and locally purchased. Undertaking to execute mortgage bond 
for Rs. 100 Mn over equipment to be imported during 2009 to a total value 
of Rs. 135 Mn.

 Amana Investments
 - Overdraft Primary mortgage for Rs. 100 Mn over stock at selected outlets.
 
Cargills Retail (Private) Limited

 Commercial	Bank
 - Term loan facility of Rs. 375 Mn Primary mortgage for Rs. 125 Mn, 150 Mn and 100 over imported 

equipment and corporate guarantee from Cargills (Ceylon) PLC.

 DFCC
 - Long term loan facility of Rs. 150 Mn Corporate guarantee from Cargills (Ceylon) PLC for Rs. 125 Mn.

Cargills Quality Foods (Private) Limited

 Commercial	Bank	 Corporate guarantee from Cargills (Ceylon) PLC for Rs. 425 Mn
 - Overdraft Primary mortgage for Rs. 300 Mn over leasehold land, building and project
 - Loan facility of Rs. 300 Mn assets at Bandigoda, Ja-Ela.

Cargills Quality Dairies (Private) Limited

 Seylan	Bank
 - Overdraft Primary mortgage for Rs. 95 Mn over leasehold land and building at
 - Loan facility of Rs. 150 Mn Banduragoda which is pending and Rs. 80 Mn over plant and machinery. 

Corporate guarantee from Cargills (Ceylon) PLC for Rs. 250 Mn.
 
CPC Agrifoods Limited

	 Commercial	Bank
 - Overdraft Primary mortgage over land, building and machinery at Kandaganmulla,
 - Loan facility of Rs. 155 Mn Katana which is pending. Corporate guarantee from Cargills (Ceylon) PLC for 

Rs. 155 Mn.
 
Cargills Food Processors (Private) Limited

 Commercial	Bank	 Corporate guarantee from Cargills (Ceylon) PLC for Rs. 50Mn.
 - Overdraft 

Millers Distributors Limited

 Hatton National Bank
 - Overdraft Corporate guarantee from Cargills (Ceylon) PLC for Rs. 335Mn.
 - Letter of credit facility Rs. 150 Mn
 - Short term loan facility Rs. 160 Mn

	 Commercial	Bank
 - Overdraft Corporate guarantee from Cargills (Ceylon) PLC for Rs. 215Mn.
 - Letter of credit facility Rs. 75 Mn

 Standard	Chartered	Bank	
 - Overdraft Corporate guarantee from Cargills (Ceylon) PLC for Rs. 250Mn.
 - Letter of credit facility Rs. 200 Mn

Notes to the financial statements contd...
As at 31 March 2009

}

}

}

Loan Security offered

}

}
}
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23  Deferred tax liability	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

As at 1 April 243,703 222,804 192,780 176,314
Charge for the year 66,655 20,899 73,476 16,466
As at 31 March 310,358 243,703 266,256 192,780

Deferred tax provision as at the year end is made up as follows. 

Deferred tax provision from 
- temporary differences of property plant and equipment 360,323 291,502 315,702 219,680
- temporary differences of retirement benefit obligations (29,136) (27,495) (28,617) (26,900)
- carried forward tax losses (20,829) (20,304) (20,829)	 -
 310,358 243,703 266,256 192,780

24  Retirement benefit obligations	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

As at 1 April 118,475 64,545 76,856 56,719
On acquisition of subsidiary - 32,174 - -
Transferred from subsidiary - - 19,915 -
Income statement charge 883 27,144 276 25,222
Contributions paid (27,803) (5,388) (15,284) (5,085)
As at 31 March 91,555 118,475 81,763 76,856

(a)  The amounts recongnised in the balance sheet are as follows.         

Present value of unfunded obligations 91,555	 	 81,763
Present value of funded obligations -	 	 -
Total present value of obligations 91,555	 	 81,763
Fair value of plan assets -	 	 -
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 91,555	 	 81,763

(b) This obligation is not externally funded.

(c) The Group has adopted SLAS 16 (Revised 2006), Employee Benefits which applies prospectively for the financial periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2007, and is therefore applicable for the financial year 2008/09. Comparative figures which reflect 
the requirements of the previous SLAS 16 have not been adjusted.

(d) Gratuity liability is based on the actuarial valuation carried out by Messrs. Actuarial and Management Consultants (Private) 
Limited, Actuaries, on 31 March 2009. The principal assumptions used in the 2009 actuarial valuation are as follows:

1. Discount rate (the rate of interest used to discount the future  12 %
 cash flows in order to determine the present value)

2.  Future salary increase
 - Executive  12 %
 - Staff  8 %

 In addition to the above, demographic assumptions such as mortality, withdrawal and disability, and retirement age were 
considered for the actuarial valuation. “A 67/07 mortality table” issued by the Institute of Actuaries, London was used to 
estimate the gratuity liability of the Company.

(e) Interest cost, current service cost, actuarial gain/loss can’t be estimated as this is the first year of the actuarial valuation of 
the gratuity liabilities of the company and the Group.

Notes to the financial statements contd...
As at 31 March 2009
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25  Trade and other payables	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Trade payables 2,774,272 2,671,619 2,503,347 2,454,748

Other payables 730,906 669,263 595,698 541,573

Accrued expenses 412,344 201,498 277,633 132,585

 3,917,522 3,542,380 3,376,678 3,128,906

26  Dividend payable	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Unclaimed dividend 7,556 6,734 7,556 6,734

27  Segmental information - Group

 Food & Beverage Distribution Photo processing Leisure Total
	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000	 Rs.	‘000

Assets	and	liabilities
Segment assets 8,336,130 7,116,184 996,152	 1,118,683	 28,653 34,375 17,380 7,461 9,378,315 8,276,703
Unallocated assets         279,166 11,391
Unallocated investments         3,254 51,091
Consolidated assets         9,660,735 8,339,185

Segment liabilities 6,552,069 5,410,023	 661,519 837,130 - - 4,085 3,744 7,217,673 6,250,897
Unallocated liabilities         310,358 192,780
Consolidated liabilities         7,528,031 6,443,677

Capital expenditure 1,200,863 802,643 16,750 10,598 12,230 - 186 - 1,230,029 813,241

Segment depreciation 664,596 563,950 22,189 13 9,579 - 1,100 79 697,464 564,042
Unallocated depreciation         3,376 2,965
Total depreciation         700,840 567,007

Non cash expenses other
        than depreciation 1,568 25,222 (685)  -  -  883 25,222

Notes to the financial statements contd...
As at 31 March 2009
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28		Commitments	 	 	Group	 Company

	 	 2009	 2008	 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000	 Rs.	‘	000

Capital	commitments

Approved and contracted 19,421 179,279 19,421	 158,279

Financial	commitments

Future payments of operating lease rentals :

- within 1 year 202,210 189,931 153,154 135,075

- between 1 - 5 years 1,201,931 748,680 600,966 489,495

- more than 5 years 2,704,624 1,584,280 1,352,312 1,060,851

 4,108,765 2,522,891 2,106,432 1,685,421

29  Contingent liabilities

 The Company has given letters of guarantee to commercial banks on behalf of the subsidiary companies amounting to  
Rs. 1.81 Bn. The Directors do not expect any claim on these guarantees. Accordingly, no provision has been made in the financial 
statements.

 There are no material pending litigations as at the balance sheet date which would result in material liability.  There are no other 
material contingent liabilities as at the balance sheet date.

30  Events after the balance sheet date

 The Board of Directors has proposed a final dividend of 30 Cents per share (on the 224,000,000 shares now in issue) for the year 
ended 31 March 2009 which is to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

 No events other than the above, have occurred since the balance sheet date which would require any adjustment to, or disclosure 
in the financial statements.

31  Transactions with group companies

 The Company has provided corporate guarantees for term loans and banking facilities obtained by its subsidiary companies, the 
details of which have been disclosed under note 22 (c) to the financial statements.

 The Company provides Secretarial and Management services to its subsidiary companies free of charge.

 The Company has provided an owned apartment to the Deputy Chairman / Managing Director for the due performance of his 
office.

 The Group has paid Rs. 25.9 Mn (2008 - Rs. 31.4 Mn) to the Directors as emoluments and fees, and Rs. 22.7 Mn (2008 - Nil) as post 
employment benefits during the year. There are no other payments made to key management personnel apart from the disclosed 
amount.

 Companies within the Group engage in trading and business transactions under normal commercial terms which give rise to 
related company balances. The balances have been disclosed under note 18 to the financial statements.

Notes to the financial statements contd...
For the year ended 31 March 2009
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Notes to the financial statements contd...
For the year ended 31 March 2009

(a)  The Directorates of Directors of the group companies

The Directors of the Company are also directors of the following companies with which the Company had regular business 
transactions as disclosed in Note 31 (b).

  Mr. Anthony Mr. L.R. Mr. A.T.P. Mr. S.E.C. Mr. Sunil Mr. J.C. Mr. E.A.D. Mrs. S.R. Mr. Jayantha MR. V.R. Mr. S.V. Mr. P.S.
  A. Page Page Edirisinghe Gardiner Mendis Page Perera Thambiayah Danapala Page Kodikara Mathavan

Group	companies

Cargills (Ceylon)PLC ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü
Cargills Retail (Pvt) Ltd ü         ü ü ü
Cargills Quality Foods (Pvt) Ltd. ü  ü   ü    ü ü ü
Cargills Distributors (Pvt) Ltd ü  ü   ü    ü ü ü
Cargills Food Services (Pvt) Ltd ü  ü       ü ü ü
Cargills Food Processors (Pvt) Ltd ü  ü       ü ü ü
Cargills Quality Dairies (Pvt) Ltd ü         ü ü ü
CPC Agrifoods Ltd ü         ü ü ü
CPC (Lanka) Ltd ü         ü ü ü
Millers Distributors Ltd          ü  ü

  Mr. Anthony Mr. L.R. Mr. A.T.P. Mr. S.E.C. Mr. Sunil Mr. J.C. Mr. E.A.D. Mrs. S.R. Mr. Jayantha MR. V.R. Mr. S.V. Mr. P.S.
  A. Page Page Edirisinghe Gardiner Mendis Page Perera Thambiayah Danapala Page Kodikara Mathavan

Other	companies          

Ceylon Theatres Ltd  ü  ü   ü    ü   ü    ü   
Ceylon Hotels Corporation      ü        
Ceylon Printers Ltd ü           
CT Properties Ltd  ü ü     ü       
CT Films (Pvt) Ltd  ü       ü      
CT Land Development Ltd ü  ü ü    ü      ü   
Dialog Telekom PLC         ü    
Directories Lanka (Pvt) Ltd       ü      
Galle Face Hotel 1994 Ltd    ü        
Galle Face Hotel Co Ltd     ü        
Kalamazoo Systems Ltd ü            
Kandy Hotels (1938) Co Ltd    ü        
Lanka Ceramics Ltd ü  ü    ü     
Lanka Tiles Ltd  ü      ü       
Lanka Walltile Meepe (Pvt) Ltd ü           
Lanka Walltiles PLC ü            
Renuka Hotel Ltd        ü    
Unidil Packaging (Pvt) Ltd ü       ü     

Directors have no direct or indirect interest in any other contracts with the Company. The above interest in contracts have been 
declared at Board Meeting by the Directors concerned.
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Notes to the financial statements contd...
For the year ended 31 March 2009

Company	 2009	 2008

	 Sales	 Other	 Purchases	 Other	 Sales	 Other	 Purchases	 Other
	 	 income	 	 expenses	 	 income	 	 expenses
	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000

Transactions with	subsidiaries
	  Cargills Quality Foods (Pvt) Ltd	 -	 1,398	 286,269	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -
	 Cargills Distributors (Pvt) Ltd	 -	 -	 178,267 - - - 459,012 -
	 Cargills Food Services (Pvt) Ltd	 -	 11,652	 -	 1,865	 -	 -	 -	 -
 Cargills Food Processors (Pvt) Ltd	 -	 3,100	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -
	 Cargills Quality Dairies (Pvt) Ltd	 -	 2,378	 533,682 - - - 356,021 -
	 CPC Agrifoods Ltd	 -	 3,055	 233,528	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -
	 CPC Lanka Ltd	 -	 -	 18,918 - - - 257,718 -
	 Millers Distributors Ltd	 40,435	 -	 403,609	 18 - - 23,165 -

Transactions with holding company

	 Ceylon Theatres PLC	 86	 -	 -	 - 72 - - 41

Transactions with other related companies

 Ceylon Hotels Corporation PLC	 -	 -	 -	 - 2,964 - - -
 Ceylon Printers Ltd	 -	 -	 -	 - - - 487 -
	 CT Films (Pvt) Ltd	 -	 -	 -	 - 34 - - -
	 CT Land Development PLC	 -	 -	 -	 18,065 24 5,661 - 17,965
	 Dialog Telekom PLC	 -	 77,057	 -	 6,913
	 Directories Lanka (Pvt) Ltd	 -	 -	 -	 - - - - 153
	 Galle Face Hotel Co Ltd	 331	 -	 -	 - 1,089 - - -
 Kalamazoo Systems Ltd	 -	 -	 -	 845	 - - - 487
	 Lanka Tiles PLC	 438	 -	 -	 7,855 687 - - 3,712
 Lanka Walltile Meepe (Pvt) Ltd	 -	 -	 -	 215 - - 114 -
 Lanka Ceramics PLC	 -	 229	 -	 - - - 1,003 -
	 Lanka Walltiles PLC	 -	 -	 -	 2,057 - - 825 -
	 Renuka Hotel Ltd	 39	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -
	 Unidil Packaging (Pvt) Ltd	 -	 -	 -	 - - - - 872
	 Millers PLC	 -	 -	 	 -	 - 47,519 17 294,335 37,822

	 	 	 	 	 	 2009	 2008

	 	 	 	 	 	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000

Dividend	received	from	subsidiary	companies

	 Cargills Retail (Pvt) Ltd	 	 	 	 	 95,125	 -

	 Cargills Quality Foods (Pvt) Ltd	 	 	 	 	 70,000	 -

Dividend	received	from	other	related	companies	

	 CT Land Development PLC	 	 	 	 	 2,359 5,661

	 Lanka Ceramics PLC	 	 	 	 	 - 1,200

(b)  Transactions with related companies
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Notes to the financial statements contd...
For the year ended 31 March 2009

Panadaria (Private) Limited

 Mrs. R Page, wife of the Deputy Chairman / Managing Director, is a Director of the above company with which the Company had 
the following transaction during the year.

 - Purchases for re-sale in the ordinary course of business Rs. 22,504,757 (2008 - Rs. 20,012,159) and the amount outstanding as 
at 31 March 2009 was Rs.2,309,314 (2008 - Rs. 2,085,714).

There are no material related party transactions other than those disclosed above. 

Group 2009	 2008

	 Sales	 Other	 Purchases	 Other	 Sales	 Other	 Purchases	 Other
  income  expenses  income  expenses
	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000	 Rs.	’000

Transactions with holding company
 Ceylon Theatres PLC 838	 1	 -	 - 1,351 - 6 41

Transactions with other related companies
 Ceylon Hotels Corporation PLC 390	 -	 -	 - 2,964 - - -
 Ceylon Printers Ltd -	 -	 -	 - - - - 487
 CT Films (Pvt) Ltd 605	 -	 -	 1,062 34 - - -
 CT Land Development PLC 80	 -	 -	 33,792 24 5,661 - 24,576
 Dialog Telekom PLC -	 123,856	 -	 6,913 - - - -
 Directories Lanka (Pvt) Ltd -	 -	 -	 - - - - 153
 Galle Face Hotel Co Ltd 1,272	 -	 -	 - 3,204 - - -
 Kalamazoo Systems Ltd -	 -	 -	 845 - - - 487
 Kandy Hotels (1938) Co Ltd 632	 -	 -	 - 1,028 - - -
 Lanka Tiles Ltd 438	 -	 -	 7,855 687 - 3,712 -
 Lanka Walltile Meepe (Pvt) Ltd -	 -	 -	 215 - - 114 -
 Lanka Ceramics PLC -	 229	 -	 - - - 1,003 -
 Lanka Walltiles PLC -	 -	 -	 2,057 - - 825 - 
 Renuka Hotel Ltd 440	 -	 -	 - - - - -
 Unidil Packaging (Pvt) Ltd -	 -	 9,702	 - - - 8,814 872
 Millers PLC -	 -	 -	 - 546,236 17 304,974 37,822
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Statement of value added
     Group  
    2009   2008 
   % Rs.’000 % Rs.’000
Creation of value added       

Gross revenue   	29,466,984	  23,521,051 
Cost of goods and services    	(25,609,109)  (20,703,396)
      
Value added from operations    	3,857,875	  2,817,655 
Dividend received   	2,621   6,861 
Other income   	570,154  461,678 
Total value added   	4,430,650  3,286,194 
      
Distribution of value added      

To	Associates      
Salaries, wages and other related costs  	38.30 	1,697,130	  41.45   1,362,116 
Directors’ fees and remuneration   	0.59	 	25,990  0.96   31,440 
   	38.89	 	1,723,120  42.41   1,393,556 
To	Government	      
Government levies   17.48  	774,503	 11.52   378,432 
Corporate taxes  	3.67	 	162,686  3.53   116,136 
    21.15	  937,189  15.05   494,568 
To Lenders of capital       
Interest   	11.95   529,600	 10.35   340,047 
Minority interest  	0.92	  40,446  1.31   43,169 
    12.87   570,046	  11.66   383,216 
To	Shareholders     
Dividends  1.96	  86,800	 2.04   67,200 
       
 
Retained	for	growth	      
Depreciation  	15.82   700,840  17.25   567,007 
Retained earnings   	9.31   412,654	  11.58   380,647 
   	25.13   1,113,495	 28.84   947,654 
      
    100.00	  4,430,650	 100.00   3,286,194 

Value addi��on for 2009

To Associates,
38.89 %

Retained for growth,
25.13 %

To Shareholders,
1.96 %

Lenders of 
capital,
12.87 %

To Government,
21.15 %

Value addi��on for 2008

To Associates,
42.41 %

Retained for growth,
28.84 %

To Shareholders,
2.04%

Lenders of 
capital,
11.66 %

To Government,
15.05 %
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Five year financial summary

   2005	 2,006	 2007	 2008	 2009
	 	 Group	 Rs.’000	 Rs.’000	 Rs.’000	 Rs.’000	 Rs.’000
	 	 	 (Retated)	 (Retated)

Financial	results
	
Net revenue 10,629,031 14,090,216 17,936,712 23,142,619 28,692,481
Profit from operation 384,939 554,957 675,013 947,199 1,232,186
Profit before taxation 209,699 359,293 394,924 607,152 702,586
Profit after taxation 176,214 184,325 337,454 491,016 539,900
Minority interests (18,376) (22,278) (75,419) (43,169) (40,446)
Profit attributable to Equity 
    shareholders of the parent 157,838 162,047 262,035 447,847 499,454
 
Financial position

Stated capital 130,723 130,723 130,723 130,723 130,723
Reserves 881,557 946,379 1,153,889 1,410,967 2,001,981
Minority Interest 81,959 97,660 183,731 353,818 -
Capital and reserves 1,094,239 1,174,762 1,468,343 1,895,508 2,132,704
 
Current assets 1,358,121 1,750,491 2,681,012 3,627,091 4,248,266
Current liabilities (3,277,697) (3,719,499) (4,578,529) (5,548,754) (6,371,303)
Working capital (1,919,576) (1,969,008) (1,897,517) (1,921,663) (2,123,037)
Non current Assets 3,329,866 3,736,668 4,091,504 4,712,094 5,412,469
Non current liabilities (316,051) (592,898) (725,644) (894,923) (1,156,728)
Net assets 1,094,239 1,174,762 1,468,343 1,895,508 2,132,704

 
Key	indicators

Growth in turnover 41.32 32.56 27.30 29.02 23.98
Growth in earning 146.29 2.67 61.70 70.91 11.52
Return on total assets 3.36 2.95 3.88 5.37 5.17
Growth in total assets(%) 16.00 17.05 23.42 23.13 15.85
Growth in capital and reserves(%) 17.51 7.36 24.99 29.09 12.51
Return on capital and reserves (%) 14.42 13.79 17.85 23.63 23.42
Return on investment(%) 15.59 14.28 19.83 26.63 24.80
Earnings per share (Rs.) 0.70 0.72 1.17 2.00 2.23
Dividends per share (Rs.) 0.27 0.30 0.30 0.39 0.50
Net assets per share (Rs.) 4.88 5.24 6.56 8.46 9.52
Dividend pay out (%) 37.61 41.47 25.65 19.38 22.42
Dividends paid 33,600 59,360 67,200 67,200 86,800
Debt equity ratio(times) 3.55 4.00 4.13 4.18 3.53
Interest cover(times) 2.20 2.84 2.41 2.79 2.33
Current ratio (times) 0.41 0.47 0.59 0.65 0.67
 
(a) Return on investment is computed by dividing the profit for the year by total average assets employed.
(b) Debt equity ratio is computed by dividing the total liabilities by the shareholders’ funds.
(c)  Above ratios have been computed based on 224,000,000 shares in issue as at 31 March 2009. 
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Our network

Colombo	
Staples Street 
Mount Lavinia 
Wellawatte 
Bambalapitiya 
Maharagama 
Nugegoda 
Fort 
Malabe 
Rajagiriya 
Boralesgamuwa 
Pitakotte 
Palawatta 
Piliyandala 
Dehiwela 
Thibirigasyaya 
Colpetty 
Moratuwa 
Nawala 
Kotahena 
Park Road 
Hill Street, Dehiwela 
Dematagoda 
Kolonnawa 
Kohuwela 
Homagama 
Avissawella 
Mount Lavinia -STC 
Kottawa 
Mutuwal 
Kaduwela 
Maradana 
Katubedda 
Attidiya 
Delkanda 
Koswatta 
Wijerama 
Kohuwela 
Mirihana 
Nugegoda 
Moratuwa 
Rathmalana 
Maharagama 
Kochchikade 
Papiliyana 
Athurugiriya 
Delgoda 
Pannipitiya 
Bokundara 
Dickmans Road 
Grand pass 
Kesbewa 
Malabe II 
Maligawatte- Express 
Alexandra Place- Express 
Havelock Road- Express 
Maradana- Express 
Bambalapitiya- Express 
Narahenpita- Express 
Ratmalana- Express 
Kotahena- Express 
Bambalapitiya- KFC 
Union Place- KFC 
Food Court MC- KFC 
Kotahena- KFC 
Moratuwa- KFC 
Mount Lavinia- KFC 
KIOSK-Fort- KFC 
Hampdon Lane- KFC 
Nugegoda- KFC 
Pelawatte- KFC 
Rajagiriya- KFC 
Maharagama- KFC 

Gampaha	
Kiribathgoda 
Negombo 
Wattala 
Gampaha 
Ja-Ela 
Chilaw 
Kadawatha 
Warakapola 
Peliyagoda 
Kelaniya 
Wennappuwa 
Seeduwa 
Kandana 
Minuwangoda 

Ragama 
Nittambuwa 
Katunayake - BIA 
Kadawatha II 
Mirigama 
Weliweriya 
Negombo II 
Peliyagoda
    (Kandy Rd)- Express 
Peliyagoda
    (Nego Rd)- Express 
Katunayaka- Express 
Ja Ela- KFC 
Kiribathgoda- KFC 

Kalutara	
Panadura 
Aluthgama 
Beruwela 
Katukurunda 
Panadura II 
Horana 
Kaluthara 
Bandaragama 
Kalutara- North 
Darga Town 
Panadura- Express

Vavuniya
Vavuniya

Trincomalee
Trincomalee

Trincomalee- Express

Anuradapura
Anuradapura

Ampara
Ampara

Batticaloa
Batticaloa

Matale
Matale

Dambulla

Kurunegala
Kurunegala

Kurunegala II
Kuliyapitiya

Pannala

Kegalle
Kegalle

Mawanella

Kandy
Kandy

Katugastota
Pilimatalawa

Akurana
Kundasale

Gampola
Anniwatte 

Nawalapitiya
Peradeniya- Express

Kandy- KFC

Nuwaraeliya
Nuwaraeliya

Hatton

Badulla
Badulla

Bandarawela
Diyatalawa- Express

Monaragala
Monaragala

Ratnapura
Ratnapura

Embilipitiya
Balangoda

Ehaliyagoda

Hambantota
Hambantota

Tangalle

Matara
Matara

Dickwella
Matara- Express

Galle
Galle

Ambalangoda
Karapitiya

Food City 120
Express 16
KFC 15 

Total	 151

Jaffna

Vavuniya

Anuradhapura

Puttalam
Polonnaruwa

Kurunegala
Matale

Trincomalee

Batticaloa

Ampara

Monaragala

Badulla

Kandy

Kegalle

Gampaha

Colombo

Kalutara

Galle

Matara

Hambantota

Ratnapura

Nuwara Eliya

Mullaitivu

Killinochchi

Mannar
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Investor relations supplement

1.		 General

 Stated capital Rs. 130,723,000
 Issued shares 224,000,000
 Class of shares Ordinary shares
 Voting rights One vote per ordinary share

2.  Stock exchange listing

 The issued ordinary shares of Cargills (Ceylon) PLC are listed in the Colombo Stock Exchange.

3.  Distribution of shareholders

	 	 31	March	2009	 31	March	2008
	 Size	of	 Shareholders	 Holding	 Shareholders	 Holding
    Number % Number % Number % Number %

 1 - 1,000 1,358	 56.12	 490,083	 0.22 1,017 90.24 138,978 2.48
 1,001 - 5,000 583	 24.09	 1,566,795	 0.70 80 7.10 150,949 2.70
 5,001 - 10,000 154	 6.36	 1,110,140	 0.50 11 0.98 79,098 1.41
 10,001 - 50,000 237	 9.79	 5,159,000	 2.30 12 1.06 292,836 5.23
 50,001 - 100,000 37	 1.53	 2,416,248	 1.08 1 0.09 59,965 1.07
 100,001 - 500,000 37	 1.53	 8,448,654	 3.77 5 0.44 959,443 17.13
 500,001 - 1,000,000 3	 0.12	 2,019,180	 0.90 - - - -
 1,000,001 and over 11	 0.45	 202,789,900	 90.53 1 0.09 3,918,731 69.98

    2,420	 100.00	 224,000,000	 100 1,127 100.00 5,600,000 100.00

4.		 Analysis	of	shareholders

 	 	 	 	 	 31	March	2009	 	 	 	 31	March	2008
	 Group	of	 Shareholders	 Holding	 Shareholders	 Holding
    Number % Number % Number % Number %

 Institutions   94	 3.88	 182,591,680	 81.51 62 5.50 4,514,758 80.62
 Individuals   2,326	 96.12	 41,408,320	 18.49 1,065 94.50 1,085,242 19.38
 Total   2,420	 100.00	 224,000,000	 100.00 1,127 100.00 5,600,000 100.00

 Residents   2,306	 95.29	 219,012,460	 97.77 1,029 91.30 5,524,310 98.65
 Non residents  114	 4.71	 4,987,540	 2.23 98 8.70 75,690 1.35
 Total   2,420	 100.00	 224,000,000	 100.00 1,127 100.00 5,600,000 100.00

5.		 Group	companies

 Pursuant to the re-structuring undertaken within the Ceylon Theatres Group, Cargills (Ceylon) PLC sold its holdings in CT Land 
Development PLC and in Lanka Ceramic PLC and acquired the minority share holding in its subsidiary, Cargills Quality Foods 
(Private) Limited on 30 September 2008.
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Investor relations supplement  contd...

6.  Share valuation

 A sub-division of each existing issued and fully paid ordinary share of Cargills (Ceylon) PLC into 40 shares was given effect on 
25 April 2008. Accordingly, the number of issued and fully paid ordinary shares was increased from 5,600,000 to 224,000,000 
consequent to the sub - division.

 
 The	market	price	per	share	recorded	during	the	year	ended	31	March 2009	 2008
	 	 Rs.	 Rs.

 Highest 2,000.00 2,100.00
 Restated to reflect position after sub - division 50.00 -
 Lowest 22.00 500.00
 Last traded price 23.50 1,999.75

7.		 Top	20	shareholders

 
  31	March	2009 31 March 2008
	 The	holdings	of	the	top	20	shareholders Number of  Number of
  Shares	 % Shares %

 Ceylon Theatres PLC  156,749,240	 	69.98  3,918,731  69.98 
 Mr. V R Page  14,220,000	 	6.35  329,425  5.88 
 SLIC Ltd - Life Fund  9,018,600	 	4.03  228,900  4.09 
 Ceylon Guardian Investment Trust - A/C No.1 7,035,000	 	3.14  112,000  2.00 
 Odeon Holdings (Ceylon) Limited  4,857,920	 	2.17	 121,448  2.17 
 Mr. Anthony A Page 4,719,000	 	2.11  167,670  2.99 
 Ms. M M Page  1,819,300	 	0.81  30,200  0.54 
 Mr. J C Page  1,736,800	 	0.78	 59,965  1.07 
 Mrs. M M Udeshi  1,536,640	 	0.69  38,416  0.69 
 Deutsche Bank AG - National Equity Fund 1,097,400	 	0.49  - -
 The Associated Newspapers of Ceylon Limited 799,840	 	0.36  19,996  0.36 
 Mr. M M Udeshi  656,300	 	0.29  31,200  0.56 
 Mr. C Gardiner, The Bishop of Jaffna, The Archbishop of Colombo  563,040	 	0.25  14,076  0.25 
 SLIC Ltd - General Fund  500,000	 	0.22   -     -   
 Mr. B N Shiner  492,000	 	0.22  12,300  0.22 
 Mrs. D Grimshaw  484,280	 	0.22	 12,107  0.22 
 Mr. K B de Vos  484,280	 	0.22  12,107  0.22 
 Estate of the late Mr N E Weerasooria 466,800	 	0.21  11,670  0.21 
 National Asset Management Ltd -  Ceylon Chamber of Commerce  450,000	 	0.20  24,000  0.43 
 Mr. Joseph Anthony Aloysius  354,000	 0.16 - -
 Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corp. Limited-National Equity Fund -				 	-    50,000  0.89 
 Dr. T Senthilverl -				 	-	   36,734  0.66 
 Mrs. F R Markar -				 	-	   8,660  0.15 
 Total 208,040,440	 	92.90  5,239,605  93.58 

8.  Public holding

 The percentage of shares held by the public as at 31 March 2009 was 18.43 % (2008 - 17.74%)
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the sixty third Annual General 
Meeting of the Company will be held at the registered office 
40, York Street, Colombo 1 on Friday, 7 August 2009, at  
3.00 p.m. and the business to be brought before the meeting 
will be:

1 To receive and consider the report of the Directors and 
the statement of accounts for the year ended 31 March 
2009 with the report of the auditors thereon.

2. To declare a dividend as recommended by the Directors.

3. To re-elect Directors
 a) P S Mathavan
 b) Anthony A Page
 c) J C Page
 d) Jayantha Dhanapala (Note iv)
 e) Mrs. S R  Thambiayah (Note v)

4. To authorise Directors to determine contributions to 
charities.

5. To re-appoint Messrs. KPMG Ford, Rhodes, Thornton & 
Co. as auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their 
remuneration. 

By Order of the Board

S L W Dissanayake  
Company Secretary

3 June 2009

Notes	:

i. A member is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and 
vote at the meeting in his or her stead and the proxy 
need not be a member of the Company.

ii. A form of proxy is enclosed for this purpose.

iii. The instrument appointing a proxy must be completed 
and deposited at the registered office of the Company 
not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for the 
meeting.

iv. A special notice has been received by the Company from 
a shareholder giving notice of his intention to move the 
following resolution as an ordinary resolution at the 
Annual General Meeting.

 “Resolved that Mr. Jayantha Dhanapala who attained 
70 years of age on 30 December 2008 be and is hereby             
re-elected a Director of the Company and it is hereby 
further especially declared as provided for in Section 
211 (1) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, that the 
age limit of 70 years referred to in Section 210 of the 
Companies Act shall not apply to the said Mr. Jayantha 
Dhanapala”

v. A special notice has been received by the Company 
from a shareholder giving notice of his intention to move 
the following resolution as an ordinary resolution at the 
Annual General Meeting .

 “Resolved that Mrs. Subodhini Radhika Thambiayah who 
attained 70 years of age on 7 June 2009 be and is hereby 
re-elected a Director of the Company and it is hereby 
further especially declared as provided for in Section 
211 (1) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, that the 
age limit of 70 years referred to in Section 210 of the 
Companies Act shall not apply to the said Mrs. Subodhini 
Radhika Thambiayah”
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Proxy form

..............................................
Date

...............................................................
Signature of member (s)

For use at the sixty third Annual General Meeting 

(Before completing this form please see notes on the reverse hereof)

I/ We …………………………...............................................…………….......................................................………………...………………………………

of …………………………………….....................…………………………...........................................................................….....…...........……… being

a shareholder/shareholders of Cargills (Ceylon) PLC hereby appoint…....................................................................…..…………………… 

…….........................….......………….……........….....…………of ……….........................….......……….………..........…....…………or failing him/her, 

the chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to represent me/us and to speak and to vote for  on my/our behalf at the sixty third 

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 7 August 2009 and at any adjournment thereof and at every Poll 

which may be taken in consequence thereof in the manner indicated below:

(Please indicate how you wish your votes to be cast by placing an ‘X’ in the spaces provided below. The resolutions are as 

indicated in the notice of the meeting in the annual report. Except as indicated by you, the proxy will exercise his/ her discretion 

both as to voting and whether or not to abstain from voting on all resolutions at the meeting)

Ordinary resolutions

Resolution number 1 2 3(a) 3(b) 3(c) 3(d) 3(e) 4 5

For

Against
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Instructions as to completion of the proxy form

1. The form of proxy must be signed by the appointor, or by  
his/ her attorney duly authorised in writing.

2. In the case of a corporation, the form of proxy must be 
either under its common seal or under the hand of an  
officer or attorney duly authorised.

3. In the case of joint holders, only one need sign. The votes 
of the senior holder who tenders a vote will alone be 
counted.

4. To be valid, this form must be filled up, signed and  
deposited at the registered office of the Company at 40, 
York Street, Colombo 1, not less than 48 hours before the 
time appointed for holding the meeting.

 
 



Name of company

Cargills (Ceylon) PLC

Company Registration No.

PQ 130

Legal form

Quoted public company with limited liability,

incorporated in Sri Lanka on 1 March 1946.

Board of Directors

L R Page (Chairman)

V R Page (Deputy Chairman / Managing Director)

S V Kodikara (Executive Director)

P S Mathavan (Executive Director)

Jayantha Dhanapala

A T P Edirisinghe

S E C Gardiner

Sunil Mendis

Anthony A Page

J C Page

E A D Perera

Mrs. S R Thambiayah

Company Secretary
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Corporate Management Committee
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Jayantha Dhanapala

Audit Committee

A T P Edirisinghe (Chairman)
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E A D Perera

Mrs. S R Thambiayah

Stock exchange listing

Colombo Stock Exchange

Registered office

40, York Street, Colombo 1, Sri Lanka

Telephone : 2427777, 2427500

Telefax : 2338704

E-mail : ccl@cargillsceylon.com

Postal address

P.O. Box 23, Colombo 1

Auditors

KPMG Ford, Rhodes, Thornton & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Legal consultants

John Wilson Partners, Attorneys-at-law

Bankers

Bank of Ceylon

Commercial Bank of Ceylon

Deutsche Bank

HSBC

Nations Trust Bank

Sampath Bank

Seylan Bank

Standard Chartered Bank

Subsidiary companies

Cargills Quality Foods (Private) Limited

Cargills Distributors (Private) Limited

Cargills Quality Dairies (Private) Limited

Cargills Food Processors (Private) Limited

Cargills Food Services (Private) Limited

CPC Agrifoods Limited

CPC Lanka Limited

Cargills Retail (Private) Limited

Millers Distributors Limited
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